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Financial and operational highlights

m Revenue growth of 274%
to $253.1 million compared to
$67.6 millionin 2003

» Operating profit of $58.7 million
compared to an operating loss of
$2.4 millionin 2003

m Operating margin of 23.2%

m Gross margin of 46.8%
compared to46.0%in 2003

s Basic EPS of $0.53 per share up
from $0.03 pershare in 2003

» Operating cash flow of
$35.8 million up from
$1.7 million in 2003

Mt L T

= Achieved 69% of all Bluetooth
design wins in 2004 compared
t064%in 2003

= Market share of Bluetooth units
shipped increased 0 45% in
2004 from 23%in 2003

» Expanded into WiFi market
with the launch of industry’s
first single chip IEEE 802.11
a, b, g, product for embedded
solutions specifically targeting
the mobile phone and consumer
electronics markets

m Expansion of the business with
the addition of 118 new staff
o 316 employees by the end
of 2004

CSR pic AnnyalReport and Financial Statements 2004 01
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CSRisthe marketleaderinsingle chip wireless
solutions, using the 2.4GHz Bluetooth personal area

network standard, designed to support data and voice
comrlnunications between awide range of products
over short range radio links.

In 2004, CSR's market share of units shippedincreased
to 45% from 23% in 2003. Accordingto IMS, the market
for Bluetooth devices was approximately 140 million
unitsin 2004 andis projected to grow by almost 80% to
approximately 250 million units in 2005.

During 2004, CSR expanded beyond the Bluetooth chip
marketW|th the launch of UniFi, the industry’s first
smgle chip [EEE802.11a,b,g embedded solution
specnflcally targeting the mobile phone and consumer
electronics markets.

02 Changing the way the world connects




IPO
CSR|listed on the London Stock Exchange under the
sympol CSRon 2 March 2004. It was originally listed at

an offer price of 200p per share, representing an initial

mar} et capitalisation of £240 million and was the most

sucéessful European IPO of 2004.

h
CSR/s Offices

Aalbarg, Denmark
Lund, Sweden

Detroit, Michigan, USA

3 Richardson, Texas, USA : /
B Cambrijdge, UK “\ X %;\\.‘
{ Corporate Headquarters o,

A

Seoul, Korea v\\'\ i}

i ]

Tokyo, Japan { 5 ﬁ dma

Taipej, Taiwan d

Tota| number of employees 316

Revenue $'000 R&D Expenditure $'000

253,140

27.630
16.980

2004 2002 2003 2002 2003
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Chairman’s statement

2004 has been aremarkable year for
CSR Our Company is now recognised

asthe most successful European
PO of 2004.
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2004 has been a remarkable year for CSR. Our
Company, established a little over 6 years ago and
listed on the London Stock Exchange in March, is now
recognised as the most successful European IPO of
2004. Our earnings per share grewto $0.53, far
exceeding the expectation at the time the Company
listed, with a consequential near doubling of our
market capitalisation since placement. Sales grew by
almost four times over the prior year and we achieved a
market share of 45% of the Bluetooth semiconductor
market worldwide.

Such performance does not occur simply
through chance or good fortune. The single chip
offering of our Bluetooth products, giving advantages
of functionality, size and value, was a consequence
of clarity of purpose, dedication to avision, attention.
to detail and a profound technical competence. But
achieving such an impressive growth rate alsc imposes
asignificant stress on the organisation, testing our
systems, management processes, relationships
with suppliers and even with our own employees.
Nevertheless, over the past year we have increased our
staff by 60%, achieved a 69% Bluetooth design win
share, tightened cost control and, most impertantly,
kept up high standards of customer service and
support across all our markets.

The response tothe challenges of 2004 by
management and staff alike, often working long hours
at our various locations across the world, is much
appreciated by the Board.

Foundations have also been lzid for the future.
We announced our low power single chip WiFi (UniFi)
product in November 2004, moved offices within
Cambridge and are well into the implementation of
anew enterprise resource planning (ERP) system
to ensure a robust supply chain to accommodate
future growth.

During the past year we have also established
a Board appropriate to meet the needs of alisted
company in the FTSE 250. Mike Shone, who did
such an able job as Chairman in guiding the Company
through to the 1PO, agreed to stay on the Board for a
further year as a non-executive director toensure
continuity. David Tucker joined us prior to the 1PQ,
taking responsibility for the Audit Committee and
subsequently agreeing to assume the role of Senior
independent Director. He brings a wealth of
commercial and financial experience to our Board
having worked with many listed companies over the
years. To ensure the right balance of skills, | was
delighted that Ron Mackintosh and John Scarisbrick
were alsoableto join us duringthe year, bringing
respectively, in depth knowledge of IT and
semiconductor industries,

Your Board has developed quickly into an
effective team, with the executive directors responding
well to the rigours and opportunities presented within
alisted company. We have yet to address all the
issues that apply in today’s Corporate Governance
environment, but a good start has been made and
further progress will be seen in the coming year.

In conclusion, t would like to thank all cur
stakeholders for their support over the past year.
Having already mentioned our staff, it would be remiss
if | did not also express the Board's appreciation to our
customers, without whose patronage the
achievements of the past year would not have been
possible, and to our suppliers who have enabled us to
respond so effectively not only to the growth but aiso
the inevitable fluctuations in market demand.

For the coming year we will continue to develop
our technologies and products, strengthen our
organisation and invest in our infrastructure. The
technology sector within which we operate is in the
early part of its fife cycle, ensuring that 2005 will be
another fascinating year as the market develops and
grows. CSR will be playing a major part in stimulating
and leading that development.

N besz

John Whybrow O\

Chairman
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Chief Executive’s review of operations

l

Bluetoothis CSR sfirstwireless
system and we have established

a leading positionin this rapidly
growing market. During 2004

we launched industry’sfirstsingle
chlpIEEE80211a b, g WiFi device
spepﬁcallytargetmg mobile
applications. Our outlook for 2005

remains very positive.




2004 was a very successful year for CSR. The
revenue of $253 million was nearly four times that of
2003 and nine times 2002’s figure. Retained profit at
$62 million angd operating cash flow of $36 million
were both 20 times greater than the prior year.

We shipped over 5C million single chip Bluetooth
devices toachieve a 45% market share compared to
23%in 2003. CSRincreased by 5%, its market share
of all design wins in 2004 to secure 63% of all those
customer end products and modules recorded on the
industry's Bluetooth SIG website. The Company
floated on the London Stock Exchange in early 2004
and, by 31 December, our share price had nearly
doubled. We are confident of delivering a strong
performance in 2005.

CSR has demonstrated significant capability in
the design, marketing and manufacture of short range
wireless systems. The initial Bluetooth technical
specification was publishedin 1398 when the
Company was founded. The intention of the Bluetcoth
standard is to support wireless connectivity and
interoperability between a wide range of eiectronic
communication devices through asingle compatible
standard. From its inception, many of the established
leaders in the information technology sector declared
their intent to enter the business and a2 number of
other companies were founded to develop integrated
circuits to participate in this new market.

Our Company has now emerged as the clear
leader in Bluetooth and this is testament to the
excellence, hard work, and dedication of all CSR's
employees. It is significant that the core design teams
of radio, computer, and software engineers that
founded CSR have now been working together
under the same roof for over 10 years developing
wireless systems.

Afounding principle of the Company has been to
be first to market with all features of each generation
of the Bluetooth specification. We have successfully
executed this strategy throughout the past 6 years to
the present day. Today, through our fourth generation
product BlueCore 4, CSR is the only company in the
world to be shipping in volume the industry’s latest
specification, Bluetooth v2.0 plus EDR, which was
ratified in 2004.

Through our design centres and field application
engineers, CSR provides local supgport to customers in
the major market areas of Asia Pacific, Europe, Japan,
and North America.

CSR provides solutions for our customer’s
product requirements not just chips. Our comprehensive
service includes integrated circuits with hardware
variants that segment the market by application, core
software, software development kits and reference
platforms and customised application software that
allow our customers to differentiate their own products.

The support we provide our customers has
resulted in CSR's technology being adopted by over
450 customers world wide. We are proud to count
amongst our customers the major suppliersin each
of the markets we address.

CSR is not just number one in total Bluetocth
design wins with 346 (69%) of the total in 2004, (5%
more than 2003) but number one in every application.
Utilising CSR's Bluecore devices in 2004, our
customers secured 31 of 56 (55%) of mobile phones
qualified, 77 of 91 (85%) of headsets, and 10 of 12
(83%) of laptops. CSR had 9 times more design wins
listed than our nearest competitor in 2004,

CSR hasdeliberately and consistently driven
down product cost quarter by quarter with ever smaller
chip sizes, lower wafer and assembly costs, improved
yields and reduced test times. Further, we have
reduced our customers’ solution cost by integrating
functionality from the application onto our Bluecore
devices, The objective isto enable customers toadd
Biuetooth to more of their products and to deny our
competitors a price umbrella under which to develop a
market position. Our manufacturing is cutsourced to
TSMC and ASE in Taiwan who provide our wafer
fabrication, assembly and test, and shipping
capability and with whom we enjoy excellent
relationships.

Bluetooth is CSR's first wireless system. We
intend to engage in other wireless standards where we
believe our technical, marketing and manufacturing
strengths can be used to our advantage. In November
2004 we taunched our first WiFi product, UniFi. This
product is the industry’s first single chip device for
mobile applications requiringthe IEEE 802.11 8, b,g
standards. The first silicon received is fully functional
and has already been sampled to lead customers with
whom we are working to secure design wins in
embedded applications.

| am pleased to report that on 15 March 2005,
we completed the acquisition of Clarity Technologies,
Inc. for $17.1 million. Thisis an exciting acquisition
for us. Clarity is a leading provider of software and
services forimproving the audio quality and
performance of voice-based communications systems
and products. Not only does Clarity give us access to
leading customersin the US automotive sector but its
patented software will give us a key competitive
advantage in audio, which we believe will continue
to be the largest Biuetooth application.

Our outlook for 2005 remains very positive.

The Bluetooth market is projected to grow from 140
million units in 2004 te 250 miliion unitsin 2005.
We believe CSR's design win and unit market share
of 69% and 51% respectively in the fourth quarter of
2004 position us well to grow in 20C5.

Di NUR SN

John Hodgson
Chief Executive Officer
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CSR history up to the IPO

Cambridge Silicon Radio {CSR) was founded in
1998 by ateam from Cambridge Consultants Limited
in Cambridge. Most of the engineering team had
worked together for a number of years developing
expertise in building high frequency radio systems
with radio, computing and software functions
integrated together as asingle chip integrated circuit
(IC). These were manufactured on a high volume, low
cost, bulk CMOS (silicon chip) process. The team
formed CSR to develop single chip wireless solutions
and selected the Bluetooth standard for its
first product, ‘

CSR was initially funded by venture capital
companies 3, Amadeus Capital Partners and Gilde IT
Fund BV. Subsequent rounds of funding attracted
strategic investors including ARM, Capital Research,
Compaq, Intel, Philips, Siemens, Sony and, in the pre
IPC round, financial investors Scottish Equity
Partners and Lloyds Development Capital. CSR raised
atotal of $84 million of funding and delivered its first
profit in the third quarter of 2003, by which time the
Company had introduced its third generation of
Bluetooth products.

The IPO of 2 March 2004 at a price of £2.00
per share was oversubscribed.

What does CSR do?
CSR is a leading provider of single chip radic
devices for short range wireless communication.
CSR’s core competence isits ability to rapidly
innovate to produce new wireless systems on CMOS
IC's for emerging wireless standards and also provide
the associated software solution.

Bluetooth

The Bluetooth standard was initially developed
by a consortium of Ericsson, IBM, Intel, Nokia and
Toshiba. Together, they formed the Bluetooth SIG
(Special Interest Group) to promote development
of short range wireless technology and encourage
product definition. CSR was one of the first companies
to join the Bluetooth SIG once membership was
extended beyond the original founding five.
Bluetooth was created to enable cable replacement
and synchronisation of data between personal
electronics devices such as mobile phones and
headsets, and PC's and peripherals such as printers
and PDA's. In automobiles, its applications include
‘hands free’' telephony. Bluetooth technology also
operatesin consumer products such as cameras,
MP3 players and stereo headsets.

31 out of 56 mobite phone
handsets qualified with the
Bluetooth SIG in 2004

usé CSR technology




Companies joining the SIG and agreeing to its
rules gain access to the necessary patents which they
can licence on a royalty free basis, They also have the
right to use the Bluetooth logo.

The market for Bluetooth has grown from
28 million devicesin 2002 to 140 million devices in
2004 according to industry analysts IMS and awide
and growing variety of products incorporating
Bluetooth are offered by most of the world’s major
electronics suppliers. It's amarket still in its growth
phase with an expanding number of applications such
asthe adoption of headsets which hasin part
been assisted by legislation in a number of countries
prohibiting drivers from using hand held mobile
phones in automobiles.

Total Bluetooth shipments

Miltions of units '

2002

2003 2004 2005E 2006E

Source: 2004 and 2005 from IMS Jan 2005, 2006 from IMS May 2004
a3 nofurther updated infermation available
*Mid points ot latest estimates

CSRachieved 55% ot all
Bluetooth design wins in 2004
inrmobile handsets

CSRand Biuetooth

CSR has consistently demonstrated its lead in
Bluetooth and is currently in mass production of its
fourth generation product, BlueCore4, with BlueCore5
set ta launch during 2005. The Company has more
than 100 hardware variants in production runningin
conjunction with more than 100 different firmware
and software configurations.

BlueCore is 2 fully integrated 2,4 GRz radio,
baseband and microcontroller and it featuresin 69%
of all qualified Bluetooth vl.1, v1.2 and v2.0 enabled
preducts and modules listed on the Bluetooth website.
Industry leaders Apple, Dell, IBM, Matorala, NEC,
Nokia, Panasonic, RIM, Sharp, Sonyand Toshiba
all use BlueCore devices in their range of Bluetooth
products.

CSR had 83% of ail faptap design
wins incorporating Bluetooth in 2004
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CSR’s R&D strengths have enabled it to extend
its offering in Bluetooth from its original specification
v1.0(2000), through v1.1(2001},v1.2 (2003) to
v2.0(2004). The standard continues to evolve to
support higher data rates and more applications.
CSR intends to continue to be first to market with its
BlueCore chips as each new standard emerges.

The Company has continued to drive down chip
size and cost. This enables the adoption of BlueCore in
new applications and increases volume in existing
applications.

CSR aiso continues to add new functions onto
different variants of its chips that are suitable for
different segments of the Bluetooth enabled market.
These new functions are both in hardware (for example
Mono and Stereo Audio Codecs, Digital Signal
Processors {DSP), power supply conditioning and
embedded fiash) and, increasingly, in software (for
example complete applications for music streaming
to headsets and more sophisticated software
development products and kits such as 8(ueCore
Host Software and BlueLab™),

BlueCore Host Software (BCHS) provides
software for end products where the upper layers of the
protocol stack and profile run on the main processor.
BCHS has been optimised for use in mobile phones.

In the past year, CSR has increased the number and
range of profiles that BCHS supports, adding DSP
functions and enabling operating systems torun on
Windows, Symbian and Linux.

Intercperability is a paramount consideration
when CSR designs a product, ensuring that BlueCore
is able to function in conjunction with the software
and functionality of the host product.

Through BlueLab™, CSR provides software
suppart to our customers for embedded on-chip
applications. BlueLab™ has been used by customers
toimprove efficiencies in product development
cycles and to optimise the functionality of their own
applications. This has included allowing programming
of a DSP co-processor included on CSR’s BlueCore3
and newer generation products. Thiswill support more
sophisticated multipoint applications for Bluetooth
such as use in MP3 players and stereo headsets.

WiFi

Bluetooth is often confused with another
wireless standard, WiFi, which is a wireless LAN {local
area network) technology, while Biuetooth enables
PANs (personal area networks). The two have been
incorrectly regarded as competing technologies. In
practice, Bluetooth can be considered as wireless
USB and WiFi aswireless Ethernet.

The two standards are complementary and
provide different capabilities with some minor
overlap. Both standards provide for cable replacement
and data synchronisation. CSR considers the ‘killer’
application for Bluetooth to be audio whilst for WiFi
itisvideo.




CSRand WiFl

In November 2004, CSR announced UniFi
which meets the WiFi standard. UniFiisthe first
WiFisinglechip IEEE802.11 a, b, g solution focused
on embedded applications specifically targeting the
mobile phone and consumer electronics markets.
UniFi has improved performance through built-in, full
receiver spatial diversity (a precurser to MIMQ) and
improved radio co-existence with co-located cellular
and Bluetooth transceivers. It also has the best-in-
class low power consumption, size and cost.

UniFiwill enable a rapid update of WiFi
technology in the brand new market outside the
traditional PC sector, for applications including
mobile phones, portable music and video players
and consumer video, cameras and audio equipment,

CSR has recently sampled the first fully
functional UniFi chips to lead customers and expects
to enter into praduction towards the end of 2005.

Employees and world wide operations

Qver 100 people joined CSR in 2004 and the
Company now has over 300 employees of which 68%
have a degree or higher qualification. CSR has offices
in seven countries, Research and development is
primarily in Cambridge, with design centres in
Aalborg, Denmark; Richardson {Texas), USA and
Lund, Sweden which was apened in February 2005.
Sales, marketing and applications staff operate from
Cambridge, Richardson, Seoul, Taipei ang Tokyo.

Operations and suppliers

CSR is a design and marketing company, All
wafer fabrication, assembly and test, and shipping
is subcontracted, predominantly to TSMC and ASE
in Taiwan. Manufacturing is located in Taiwan to
minimise production cycle time and inventory,
simplify logistics and to take advantage of a common
language and ¢ulture. CSR hasworked to develop
excellent relationships at all ievels with these partners.
This has served CSR well and provided the Company
with leading edge manufacturing technology and
strong support in satisfying capacity requirements
and controlling cests.

Using this production process has enabled CSR
to successfully ship over 75 million Bluetooth single
chip devices whilst aggressive cost reduction programs
have allowed it to maintain margins as it drives down
prices. This encourages CSR’s customers to
increasingly adopt CSR'stechnology in their products.

CSR pic Annval Report and Financial Statements 2004 11
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gy serves a trend towards the adoption

of wireless connectivity in the global electronics and

|

ITindps

tries. Its “solution on a chip” offering is also

creating new market opportunities.

12 Changing the way the worid connects

Enabling new players in the wireless communications
value chain

CSR’s highlyintegrated wireless systems on
CMOS$ provide much more than just a radic component.
The level of added capability is having a dramatic
effect on the market, opening up new opportunities,
because CSR’s customers no longer need to become
involved in the following aspects of wireless systems
manufacturing:

- Signal processing algorithms
- Communications protocols and ‘software stacks'
-Radio frequency, production measurement
and testing ‘
- Interoperability testing
- Regulatory approvals for radio frequencies and
communications industry certifications

Inthe past, because a manufacturer needed
proficiency in these disciplines, digital wireless
communication was the preserve of companies that
had evolved from either defence industries or state
funded telecoms providers and operators. CSR's
BlueCore and UniFi systems are designed to integrate
all of the above aspects in a pre-packaged form. This is
why CSR says it creates solutions for customers rather
than just chips. CSR's products make it much easier
for customers to add wireless capability and therefore
reduce time-to-market. Companies, and even whole
electronics industry sectors, which in the past had
limited experience in deploying modern wireless
communications, are now able to introduce wireless
connectivity by using CSR's technolegy.

This expansion of access to wireless technology
for manufacturers is what is meant by the phrase
‘democratising wireless'. CSR's solution onachip
means ODM'swho previously did not have the skills to
include wireless, are now able to do so.

For traditional OEM's {original equipment
manufacturers), the big brands who do have the skills
to manufacture wireless, the attraction of CSR's
solutions is different. They are looking to make their
profit by adding value in different areas and want to
buy in the communications technology that wiil ailow
themto differentiate their products. Outsourcing
non strategic technology to third party contract
manufacturers allows them to focus their resources on
adding value through the things they do best: brand
recognition, adding features and applications, and
achieving high manufacturing economies of scale.

Enabling device portability through further
system level improvements in power consumption,
size and cost

Fundamental improvements in wireless
communications technology, which CSR is
particularly strong at, are not only enabling CSR to
beat the competition, they are opening up the whole
market. These improvements are:

- Better real world radio performance with better
range and reliability

~ Lower power consumption

~Reducedsize

~ Lowercost

These were significant barriers that not only
stopped CSR selling chips, they held back the whole
wireless industry, Removing them opens up several
market opportunities.

The mobile phone of five years’ time will in
reality be a combined personal organiser, web browser,
e-mail client, stilfand video camera and portable
television.




Anexample pf the trend to
convergence from separate

devicesisthere

:éently

anncunced Gizmondo,

which combines messaging,

imaging and garnes. it uses

CSR’s BlueCore!
wireless person

connectivity, |

3-ROM for
1l

With the explosion in the amount of personal
data and content stored on new multi-function
‘persenal communications devices’ such asthe
Gizmondo (pictured) wili come an increasing demand
for new and better ways to store and share this
information. The user of such devices wiil want touse
the increasing variety and quantity of data they have
collected. They will want to store and print documents
and contact details, view images and videos on larger
screens and listen to music on headphones or
speakers, Short range wireless connectivity will play
anincreasing role in enabling this sharing of data
between devices to happen and CSR isthe leader in
making it possible quickly, reliably and between a wide
range of devices.

With the emergence of increasingly
sophisticated personal devices like these, the
demands on the wireless communications provider
continue to accelerate. CSR has pioneered the
miniaturisation and integration of the complete
modern digital communications chain (from antenna
to user interface)} in order to serve this fundamental
technological need.

Short range connectivity enables convergence
There are currently four areas where
convergence of communications and consumer
technologies is driving demand for the type of short-
range connectivity in which CSR technology excels.

1. Convergence of delivery of music
and communications

The success of portable music players, together
with new operator services to distribute music on-line,

are creating new ways to distribute and listen to music.

Wireless connections from a portable music device to
hi-fi quality stereo headphones for personal listening
and from the same player to home music centres will
increasingly be provided by short-range wireless
technologies such as Bluetooth and WiFi.

2. Convergence of computing and
entertainment in the home

The television which traditionally resided in the
corner of the living room is rapidly being replaced by
an appliance that is a hybrid of the PC and set top box.
[t requires increased wireless communications
bandwidths in home networking, local area video
distribution and broadband connectivity to facilitate
viewing throughout the home. This wireless
connectivity will require the high bandwidths and
improved quality of service developed by CSR in its
Jatest UniFirange of WiFi communication devices.

3. Convergence of fixed and mabhile telephony

People prefer a single phone number for both
portable home phones (which are replacing landlines)
and their mobiles. As both mobile and fixed line
telephone infrastructure is rapidly migrated from
circuit switched to IP based networks, it is spawning
the demand for new ways for the mobile phone to
connect to the network. The UMA {unlicensed mobile
access) initiative, for instance, specifies both
Bluetooth and WiFi as alternative physical layer
connections from maobile phone to network,
broadening the domain of applications for which
CSR's UniFiand BlueCore technologies are optimised.

4. Convergence of communications control and
entertainment electronics inside the automabile

Bluetooth technology has the perfect
optimisation of performance against cost to enable
voice telephony, music playback and evenvehicle
service diagnostics within the next generation of cars.
CSR's portfolio will continue to expand to meet both
the stringent quality and reliability requirements of
the automotive industry, as well as the demand for
state-of-the-art functionality.

Summary

CSR'sstrength isdelivering highly integrated
wireless systems on silicon. These add capability
across the wireless technology value chain from chip
component, through robust proven interoperable
protocols and pre-certified solutions, to complete
production test.

CSR will continue to add value through
providing more application-centric hardware anc
software inside its systems on silicon. Asthe
convergence of devices and services increases there
is an increasing need to achieve wireless connectivity.
At the same time, device manufacturers will
increasingly try to differentiate themselves, not inthe
wireless technology but through the degree to which
more functions can be integrated into the converged
device and the speed with which these devices can be
brought to market. The pressure to outsource the
design and supply of wireless communications wil!
therefore increase. CSR's highly-integrated wireless
systems on CMOS chips, its “solutions onachip”
offering, will enable CSR to serve the new markets
being created by new wireless standards as they
emerge, from Bluetooth and WiFi tothe standards
of the future.

1 / \
%/;/XZM A

Glenn Collinson
Sales Director
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Finance Director’s operating and financial review

Rev

con
ani

enue increased for the fourth
secutive yearto $253.1 million,
ncrease of 2747 from $67.6 million

ach

ieved in 2003. Operating profit

was $58.7 million comparedtoan
operating loss of $2.4 million in 2003.
Cash generated from operations
|nc eased to $35.8 million compared

to$

1.7 million in 2003.




CSR plc is the holding company of an
international group of companies with its headquarters
in Cambridge, UK. The Company achieved an IPQin
March 2004, Itis listed on the London Stock Exchange
and is a constituent member of the FTSE 250 Index.

Activities

CSRisa ‘fabless’ semiconductor company
providing single chip radio devices for short range
communication. Through its BlueCore range of
products, CSR is the market leading supplier of
Bluetooth solutions, providing low cost, high
performance integrated circuits {IC’s or silicon chips)
to manufacturers of awide range of electronic devices
including mobile phones, headsets, laptop PC's,
smart phones, PC peripherals, and automotive based
systems. CSR supplies over 450 end customers
including Apple, Dell, IBM, Motorola, NEC, Nokia,
Panasonic, RIM, Sharp, Sony and Toshiba.

in 2004, CSR launched its second product range,
UniFi, the world's first single chip IEEE 802.113a,b, 8
embedded solution specifically targeting the mabile
phone and consumer electronics markets. UniFiis
duetogointo volume production during 2006.

Strategy

CSR's strategy istosupply leading edge
single chip solutions for wireless voice and data
communications. This strategy includes:
. Focusing on existing and growing
Bluetooth markets
CSR believesit is well positioned to develop hardware
and softwaré solutions to address the existing and
future applications for Bluetooth.
. Increasing software content in new products
CSR believes that increased software content
improves the robustness and flexibility of its solutions
and helpstodistinguish them from competing
offerings. CSR intends to increase the emphasis on
software in the future.
. Extending its expertise in Bluetooth technologies
CSR plans to extend its expertise in Bluetooth
technology to provide differentiated products for
different segments of the market.
* Focusing on lowering the cost of Bluetooth
solutions using its IC’s
CSR believes that by continuing toincrease the
fu nctionality of its IC's and developing its on-chip
application software, itwill be able to further reduce
the total cost of the complete Bluetooth systemtoits
OEM and ODM customers.

. Enhancing CSR’s sales, marketing and
technical support functions

CSR is committed to maintaining the high level of
technical support it currently provides to its customers
as well as pursuing new markets.

. Leveraging expertise in other wireless markets
CSR believes that its single chip, RF and software
design expertise, combined with its knowledge of the
integration of wireless solutions with its customers’
products, puts it in a strong position to pursue
opportunities to provide solutions for new or
developing wireless communications standards,
starting with WiFi, and our product UniFi, the
industry's first single chip802.11a,b, g

embedded solution.

Organisation and structure

CSRisorganised around a core research
and development team of 110 engineers based in
Cambridge, UK, supplemented by design centres in
Azlborg, Denmark and Richardson, Texas, USA which
has recently been augmented by establishing a team
located in Lund, Sweden.

The sales and marketing functicniscentred in
Cambridge with sales liaison offices in Richardson,
Texas; Seoul, Korea; Taipei, Taiwan and Tokyo, Japan.

CSR established a Bluetooth business unit in
2004 as the first step to creating a divisional structure
which will be further developed in 2005 and 2006 as
its UniFi product range is adopted by our customers,

Dynamics

The key driver of revenue in 2004 for the
Company's BlueCore products was the mobile phone
and headset market which accounted for over 70%
of all CSR's unit shipments. Other important end
markets for BlueCore included PC's, smart phones
and PC peripherals (which includes printers, mice
and keyboards), automotive (hands free kits) and
consumer (which includes cameras and camcorders).
In addition to these markets, which will cantinue to be
important in 2005, CSR also expects new applications
for Bluetooth to develop in greater volumes. Examples
of such applications include stereo headphones for
use with digital music players, mobile phones
and smart phones.

The drivers of the market for our UniFi product,
launched in November 2004, will be the use of WiFiin
high volume portable devices such as mobile phones,
cameras, camcorders and music players. UniFi will
support applications such as wireless voice over
internet protocol (wVOIP), the fast exchange of
picture and music files, downloading data from WiFi
‘hotspots’ and video streaming. CSR expects UniFi
toshipinvolume in 2006,
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Design wins and market share

Bluetooth products must be qualified with the
Bluetooth Specialinterest Group as meetingthe
Bluetooth standard. Once qualified, they are listed
on the Bluetooth.com website. CSR defines a design
win asan end product or module fisted on the
Bluetooth.com website, identifyingone of CSR's
BlueCore parts as the Bluetooth solution being used.
Asarule, these design winswill be an indicator of
future revenue although, of course, some design wins

are for products which sell in more volume than others.

2004 Design wins by application
{CSR’s share of total design wins)

Share of design wins in 2003 and 2004

s M, deate A

315Gwins  770Lwins  283Lwins

Laptops
10/12wins

Competitive position

CSR has achieved a leading position with
the majority of design wins listed on the Bluetooth
website in 2004. As the charts on this page
demonstrate, the Company's design win Jeadership
spans all Bluetooth applications. This includes
55% of all design wins in mobile phone products
with customers including LG, Motorala, Nokia,
Panasonic, RIM and Samsung. CSR's competition
includes Broadcom, Texas Instruments and RF Micro
Devices (which acquired Silicon Wave during the year).

Silicon Wave
(RFMD) 6%

intineon 3%
T13%
Broadcom 4%
Philips 3%
Zeevo 5%
Other 12%

S

CSR64%

[ pycon Ware
Infineon 1%
T14%
Broadcom 7%
Philips 3%
Zeevo 3%
Other11%

CSR69%

Source: www.bluetooth.com

The Company's market share as a percentage
of the number of units delivered to customers by all
Biuetooth suppliers (including chips shipped under
licence) hasrisen from 23% in 2003 t0 45% in 2004.
In the fourth quarter 2004, CSR's unit market share
had risen to 51%.
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CSR's overal( Bluetooth market share {percentage of units shipped)

Annual

2002 2003 2004

Source: IMS

oo, Quanterly

B B

Q12004 Q22004 Q32004 Q42004

Note: CSR unit shipments inciude direct shipments and chips shipped under licence

Review of operations

2002 2003 2004 200312004
$'000 $000 $000 (Change)
Turnover 27,682 67,622 253,146 +274%
Gross Margin 43.0% 46.0% 46.8%
R&D 12,602 16,584 27,281 +65%
% of turnover 45.5% " 24.5% 10.8%
SG&A 14,644 16,930 32,412 +91%
% of turnover 52.9% 25.0% 12.8%
Operating (loss) profit (15,343) (2,407 58,732
% of turnover (55.4%) (3.6%) 23.2%

Earnings per share ($)

(0.17} 0.03 0.53

Revenue increased for the fourth consecutive
yearto $253.1 million and represented 2 274%
increase over 2003 revenue ($67.6 million). This level
of growth exceeded expectations at the beginning of
2004. This success was underpinned by a particularly
strong performance in shipping BlueCore IC’s into the
mobile phone and headset segments, where Bluetooth
attach rates have been increasing.

As explained on the opposite page, market share
of both design wins and units shipped have increased
significantly in 2004 over 2003.

RO L D

A material factor in the success of any business
in consumer electronics isthe ability to reduce unit
prices in both existing and new release progucts. CSR
places significant focus on controlling product costs
and during 2004 has aggressively reduced costs in
line with the expected average selling price (ASP)
reductions typical of the semiconductor market. As a
result, gress margins have been maintained at over
45%, although in the longer term CSR expects gross
margins to reduce to between 42% and 45% as ASP's
reduce involume applications.

Operating costs have increased by 78% in
2004 over 2003 as CSR continuesto invest in R&D
for current wireless solutions as well as new projects.
Further additional investment in applications
engineers and szles people continued during 2004
and general and administration costs have increased
to support the growing levels of business.

QOperating profit was $58.7 million ata 23.2%
operating margin, compared toa loss in 2003 of
$2.4 mitlion.

Interest

Interest receivable increased to $1.2 million in
2004 compared to $0.3 million in 2003 asaresult of
increased levels of cash and liquid resources as well
as higher interest rates.

Taxation

Given the Board’s expectations of future taxable
profits, a deferred tax asset has been recognised for
the remaining tax losses amaunting to $8.0 million.
The net tax credit of $2.5 million reflects the creation
of this deferred tax asset aswell asthe charge in the
year arising in respect of prior years due toachange
in taxation treatment of R&D tax credits received and
accrued. CSR expects to charge corporation tax at
an approximate effective rate of 27% for 2005 from
1 January 2005, The first payment of corporation tax
isexpected to be in July 2005.

Earnings per share

Earnings per share (diluted) were $0.48
for 2004 compared to $0.03 for 2003. Earnings
per share (basic) were $0.53 compared t0 $0.03
for 2003.
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Financial position

Shareholders’ funds increased by $120 million
to $155.4 million, The following table shows the
movements during 2003 and 2004.

2003 2004
$°000 $'000
Profitfortheyear 2824 61,751
Exchange loss (3) -
o 2,921 61,751
Newsharesissued 91274583
Issvecosts . . .7 (553D
Share related charge - 425
Redemption of redeemable
preferenceshares o= (1,189
Reversal of accrued expenses 18 ~

3851 120,009
31,542 35,393
35,393 155,402

Net addition to shareholders’ funds
Opening shareholders’ funds
Closing shareholders' funds

Trade receivables increased to $31.8 million
from $8.6 million at 31 December 2003 as aresult of
increased levels ofbusiness. Days' sales outstanding
increased to just over 40 days as aresult of a higher
percentage of direct customers (as opposed to
business channelled through distributors) who
can generally command better creditterms.

Inventory stood at $30.1 million compared to
$6.9 million at 31:December 2003, again reflecting
increased levels of business. CSR manages inventory
levels in order to have between 5 and 7 stock turns in
inventory to be able to meet the often short customer
order lead times in the industry.

Provisions far liabilities and charges in the
baiance sheet on page 39 include a provision for the
estimated present value of the net expected future
cash flows relating to sub-letting premises which
were vacated in the fourth quarter of 2004, for which
the year end provision stood at $2.3 million.

Movement in cash and liquid resources

2003 2004

$'000 $'000
Operating {loss) profit _ {2,407) 58,732
Depreciation charge 2,958 4,311
Qther non-cash charges 44 611
Decrease (increase) in workingcapitel 779 (31,003)
Increase in provisions 292 3,196
Net inflow from operating activities 1,667 35,847

Returns on investments and

sevicing of finance . 452) 905
Taxation .._L154 {1,939
Capital expenditure and

financial investment _(3,631) (7,624)
Financing e $1,113) 57,588
Translation difference 840 (652)

(Decrease) increase in cash

and liquid resources (1,135) 84,125

During 2004 there was a cash inflow of
$84.1 million, Operating cashflow contributed $35.8
million, capital expenditure was $7.6 million and net
interest received was $0.9 million. Tax paidwas $1.9
million and cash infiow from financing was $57.6
mitlion, of which $56.1 million was the net proceeds
fromthe PO in March 2004. This compares toa net
cash outflowof $1.1 miliion in 2003 which included
$£3.6 million of capital expenditure, tess $1.7 million
generated from operations and R&D tax credits of
$1.2 million.

The significant growth in CSR's revenues has
resulted in the requirement for a $31 million
investment in working capital in 2004.

Capital expenditure of $7.6 million refiects the
continued investment in test and computer equipment
and CAD software required to support current and
future R&D projects. This expenditure will continue
into 2005 and will include significant investmentin
production test equipment to enable further product
cost reductions. Capital expenditure is expected to
increase as a percentage of revenue to approximately
5% in 2005.

Operational and treasury risk management
Risk management

The risk management processes of the Group
are described on page 22 of the Directors’ report on
corporate governance,

Treasury risk management

CSR has well defined and consistently applied
policies far the management of foreign exchange and
interest rate exposures. There has been nochange
since the year end in the major financial risks faced
by the Company. The Audit Committee reviews and
agrees policies for managing foreign exchange and
interest rate exposure risks which are summarised
below. These policies were reviewed in 2004 and will
be regularly reviewed going forward. The Company'’s
financia! instruments comprise cash and cash
deposits, forward contracts for the purchase of
currency and items such as trade receivables and
creditors which arise in the normal course of
business. It isthe Company’s policy not to enter
into speculative transactions.

Foreign exchange risk

Substantially all of the Company’s sales and
costs of sales are denominated in US dollars, CSR's
functional currency. A proportion of the Campany's
overhead costs and other fixed costs are denominated
in currencies other than US dollars. This exposure to
different currencies would result in gains or losses
with respect to movements in foreign exchange rates
against the US dolfar and the impact of such
fluctuations could be material. Accordingly, the
Company enters into hedging transactions pursuant to
which it purchases other currencies under forward
purchase contracts in order to cover its exposure.
CSR’s policy is to cover its exposure with the purchase
of currency under forward contracts that mature
between 11 and 15 monthsinto the future. These
transactions necessarily invalve judgements and
assumptions about future expense levels, and,
asaresult, donot entirely eliminate exposure to
currency fluctuations.
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Further, whilst the hedging transactions
provide fixed currency rates for periods covered
by the contracts, the transactions will not protect
the Company from long term underlying movements
in currency rates, The principal exposure risk is with
GBP. The average USD/GBP rate achieved in 2004
was $1.55/£1 and 2005 contracts are in place at
anaverageof $1.78/£1.

International accounting standards

Under current European Legisiation, CSR will
be requiredto adopt International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and |nternational Accounting
Standards (IAS) in the preparation of financial
statements from 1 January 2005 onwards. CSR
adopted IFRS from 1 January 2005, The standard
which is expected to have most impact on CSR will be
IFRS 2 “Share Based Payment”. It is expected that
the impact on earnings per share of adopting IFRS in
2005 will be lessthan 5%. CSR will release Q1 2005
resuits in accordance with IFRS, with restated
comparatives for 2004, during May 2005.

Business risks

The operating and financial review and
other sectiéns of the annual report contain forward
looking statements which are subject to the risk
factors associated with the fabless semiconductor
sector. These include the following that could affect
CSR'sresults:

Fabiess business model: The Company uses
independent suppliers to manufacture, assemble
and test all of its products. As a result, the Company’s
business model is less capital intensive. TSMC, the
world's largest semiconductor manufacturer isthe
Company’s principal wafer foundry. ASE performs
substantially all of the assembly and testing of CSR's
IC’s, The Company maintains an internal
manufacturing support group which directs product
supply, helps ensure a high level of quality and
reliability and works with the wafer foundry and
production assembler to resolve issues.

Product design cycle: The design cycle for the
Company’s IC’s in Bluetooth enabled productscan
take up to 24 months to complete and volume
production of products using the Company's IC's can
take an agditional 6 months or more. This {engthy
design cycle makes forecasting product demand and
the timing of orders difficult. In addition, the delays
inherent in lengthy design cycles increase the risk that
customers may seek to cancel or modify orders, often
at short notice.

G FEE RS

Product life cycle; declining prices: The life
cycle of the Company’s IC's can be reiatively short.
For example, the first shipment of BlueCorel ICs took
place in the third quarter of 2000 and the Company
notified customers in the second quarter of 2003 that
the product wes being discontinued. The average
selling prices of the Company's IC's will generally fall
over the product's life cycle, The Company's ability to
increase turnover, therefore, depends on its ability to
increase unit volume and to introduce new products
that are acceptable to customers,

Terms of sale: Sales are made through purchase
orders with specific terms and conditions. industry
practice does, however, allow customers to reschedule
and cancel orders on refatively short notice. As a
result, backlog may not be an accurate indicator of
future turnover. Customer order canceliations and
changes in product specifications could resultina
loss of turnover and excess inventory.

Seasonality: The majority of the Company’s
customer design wins have been in products with
consumerefectronic appiications. As aresuit, CSR
expects its businessto be subject to seasonality, with
increased turnover in the third and fourth quarters of
each year in connection with the year-end holidays.
Levels of demand in the first quarter of each financial
year are likely to be seasonally lower than the fourth
quarter of the preceding financial year in keeping with
other businesses with significant exposure tothe
supply of consumer markets,

Cyclicality: The semiconductor industry is
cyclical and has experienced significant downturns,
often in connection with maturing praducts and
declines in general economic conditians. Such
periods have reflected production overcapacity,
excess inventory levels and accelerated erosionin
average selling prices.

(e f

Paul Goodridge
Finance Director
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Statement of compliance

The Company suppearts the principles of
corporate governance contained in the Combined
Code on Corporate Governance which is appended to
the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority.

The Board is accountable to the Company's
shareholders for good governance. The Company
has, since listing in March 2004, complied with the
majority of the provisions of the Combined Code ~
Principles of Good Governance and Code of Best
Practice. The statements below describe how the
Company has applied the principles identified in the
Combined Code and areas where the Company is
presently working towards compliance.

The Board

The Board meets regularly during the year
aswellason an ad‘hoc basis as required by time
critical business needs. The Board is responsible
to shareholders for the effective and proper
management and contro! of the Company and has a
formal schedule of matters reserved for its decisions.
Its primary roles are to determine and review Company
strategy and policy, consider acquisitions and
disposals, assess requests for major capital
expenditure and give consideration to all cther
significant financial matters. This processis
undertaken following discussions in conjunction
with senior executive management who in turn are
responsible for day to day conduct of the Group's
operations and for reporting tothe Board on the
progress being made in meeting the objectives.

The Board met ten times during the year and the
attendance of each of the directors is shown on
page 23.

Following the Company’s listing in March
2004, the membership of the Board has been under
regular review, with the continued recruitment of non-
executive directers. Asat 31 December 2004, the
Board comprised nine members being the Chairman,
Mr John Whybrow, four executive directors and four
non-executive directors. The four executive directors
who served throughout the year were Mr John
Hodgson, Chief Executive Officer; Mr Paul Goodridge,
Finance Director; Mr James Collier, Chief Technical
Officer and Mr Glenn Collinson, Sales Director.
During the year the Board appointed three non-
executive directors, Mr David Tucker, effective
23 January 2004, Mr Ron Mackintosh, effective
5 May 2004 and Mr John Scarisbrick, effective
16 June 2004. Mr Mike Shone, who had served the
Company as Chairman prior to the Company’s full
listing, agreed tocontinue as a non-executive director
fora further yearto 31 March 2005.

The number of non-executive directors
{excluding the Chairman) did not untit 16 June 2004
represent at least half the Board. Mr David Tucker
was appointed the Senior Independent Director on
7 October 2004. Mr Goodridge has been the director
responsible for health and safety within the Company.
The directors possess diverse business experience in
spheres complementary to CSR’s activities, aswell as
other sectors. Mr Brett Gladden was appointed
Company Secretary effective 20 September 2004.

The following directors resigned during
January 2004, prior to the Company's flotation on
the London Stock Exchange. Dr Hermann Hauser
(21 January), Dr Pau! Auton (28 January),

Mr Anton Arts, Dr Philip O'Dongvan, Mr Laurence
Garrett and Mr Stuart Paterson {each an 30 January).
On 31 March 2005, Mr Mike Shone will stand down
asadirector.

Biographies of the directors are shown
on pages 24 and 25.

In accordance with the provisions of the
Combined Code, consideration has been given to
the independence of all the non-executive directors.
The Board considers all the nan-executive directors
tobe independent.

Given the period for which the Board as ateam
has been established, a formal process of performance
evaluation has not been implemented. The Chairman
has however held regular meetings with ali the directors
individually. [n addition, prior to the year end the
Chairman held a meeting of the non-executive
directors to discuss the performance of the executive
directors and the Board as awhole. A more formal
process of evaluation will be considered during 2005.

In accordance with the Company's articles of
association, all directors are required to retire and
submit themselves for re-election at least once every
three years. It is policy of the Board that non-executive
directors are appointed for an initial term of three
years, following which it will be reviewed and as
appropriate, extended for a further three year period.
Non-executive directors should not generally serve for
more than nine years.

On appointment, all directors are advised that
they have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary and, in addition, that they are
entitled to seek independent professional advice in
the furtherance of their duties, if necessary, atthe
Company’s expense.



Communications with shareholders

Principally via the executive directors, the
Company seeks to build on a mutua! understanding of
objectives with its institutional shareholders through
regular meetings and presentations following
announcements of each quarter’s results. The Senior
Independent Director, Mr David Tucker, is available
to meet institutional shareholders should there be
unresolved matters they wish to bring to his attention.
Although the non-executive directors have not yet
been ableto meet the shareholders, their attendance
atthe Annual General Meeting is required. Corporate
information is also available on the Company's website,
www.Csr.com.

Committees of the Board

The Board has three committees, Remuneration,
Nomination and Audit, whose members comprise non-
executivedirectors. in accordance with the Combined
Code, the duties of the committees are setout in
formal terms of reference. These are available from
the Company Secretary and can be found on the
Company's website, www.csr.com. Membership
of the committees is shown on pages 24 and 25.
The Company Secretary acts as secretary to each
of the committees.

Remuneration Committee

Mr John Whybrow is the Chairman of the
Rernuneration Committee. The principal function of
the Committee is to establish and review the terms and
conditions for the executive directors, and the overall
policy framewark for the remuneration of other senior
executives and the Group as a whole. The Committee
met three times during the year and the attendance
of its members is shown in the table on page 23.
The report to sharehalders on how directors are
remunerated, together with details of individua!
directors’ remuneration are shown on pages 30 to 34,
At the time of his appointment as a nan-executive
director, Mr Whybrow agreed to chair the Remuneration
Committee given his experience in this role in other
listed companies. Refiecting the principles of the
Combined Code, it is expected that Mr Whybrow will
stand down as Chairman of the Committee during 2005,

Nomination Committee

MrJohn Whybrow isthe Chairman of the
Nomination Committee. The Committee reviews the
composition of the Board, particularly in relation to
the diversity of skills, experience, age and term of
office and seeks to ensure that hoth executive and
non-executive directors have the necessary skilis and
attributes for the future success of the Group. The
Committee retains external search consultants as
appropriate and during 2004 engaged Egon Zehnder
to assist in the appointment of non-executive
directors. During 2004, the Committee met five times,
as part of the formal business of the Board, to discuss
the appointments of non-executive directors. This
ensured thatthe views of the executive directors were
taken into consideration.

Audit Committee

Mr David Tucker is the Chairman of the Audit
Committee, and was appointed on 23 January 2004.
Prior to his appointment, Mr Mike Shone acted as
Chairman. Each member of the Committee brings
relevant financial experience from senior executive
and non-executive positions. The experience and
expertise of the members of the Committee are
summarised on pages 24 and 25.

The Committee met four times duringthe year
and the attendance of its members is shown in the
table on page 23. The Committee invites the Chief
Executive Officer, the Finance Director and senior
representatives of the external auditors to attend
meetings as appropriate to the business being
considered. In addition, the Committee has the right
to invite any cther employees to attend meetings
where this is considered appropriate.

The Committee is responsible for the
development, implementation and manitoring of the
Company’s policy on external audit and for overseeing
the abjectivity and effectiveness of the auditors.

The Committee recommends the appointment and
re-appointment of the Company's external auditors
and considers the scope of their audit work and the
cost effectiveness of their work. The Committee is
aware of the audit and non-audit services which have
been provided by Deloitte & Touche LLP during 2004.
Assignificant proportion of the non-audit services
related to non-recurring work in connection with the
preparation and publication of the Company's listing
particulars prior to flotation in March 2004. They also
advised on tax matters which was considered to be
appropriate, giventheir in depth knowledge of the
affairs and financial practices in the Group. The
Committee is satisfied that, notwithstanding this
work, Deloitte & Touche LLP have retained objectivity
and independence during the year.

In relation tothe appointment of external
auditors and in crder to safeguard auditor
independence and objectivity, the Committee has 2
policy of permitted services which details the services
that ¢an be provided by the Company’s auditors and
those services which require specific approval by the
Committee. The policy also details services that the
Company’s auditors are not permitted to provide. The
policy has been complied with throughout the year.

The Committee reviews, where practicable, ali
proposed announcements to be made by the Company
to the extent they contain financial information. The
Committee monitors and reviews the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control systems, accounting
policies and practices, risk management procedures
and compliance controls as well as the statement on
internal controls before they are agreed by the Board
foreach year'sannual report.
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The Chairman.of the Committee attends the
Company’s Annual General Meeting to respond to any
shareholder questions that might be raised concerning
the Committee's activities.

Internal control
Philosophy and palicy

The objective of the directors and senior
management is to safeguard and increase the value
of the business and assets of the Company. Part of
this objective requires the development of relevant
policies and appropriate internal controls to ensure
proper management of the Company's resources and
the identification of risks which might serve to
undermine them.

The Board is uitimately responsible for the
Company's system of internal control and for reviewing
its effectiveness. The systems and processes
established by the Board are designed to manage,
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives and provide reasonable, not
absolute assurance against misstatement or loss.

The Board has delegated responsibility for the
review of practices and procedures to the Audit
Committee. The Company’s senior management, in
conjunction with external advisers are responsible
for undertaking periodic reviews of the suitability
of current systems on which they report tothe
Committee.

The Committee reviews the findings o ensure

‘the effectiveness and efficiency of the processes

implemented by senior management. This includes
discussions with senior management of the Company
and consideration of reports that have been submitted.
These findings are in turn discussed by the full Board.
The Board is satisfied that this process accords with
the internal control guidance for directors setoutin
the ICAEW Turnbuli Report and that through its
interface with management, the Board isaware of the
major risks facing the Company and the steps taken

by the Company where possible to mitigate such risks.

Managing risks

A summary of the structures and processes in
place to identify and manage risks across the Group
are setout below.

Risk profiling

There is an ongoing precess to identify and
evaluate risks faced by the Company, through the
conduct of regular meetings by the Company’s senior
management. Findings are reparted to the Committee
together with recommended actions and a timetabie
forimplementation. Alist of prioritised risks is
refreshed on a quarterly basis to reflect changesto
the business. The schedule, aleng with other
management information, is used to develop an
overall assurance plan for the Company.

Controlling risk

The Company has policies which address a
number of key business risks, inciuding financial,
treasury and health and safety. The policies are made
available to relevant employees through policy
manuals, an intranet site and also viaemployee
briefings on specific topics as appropriate. The
Company also has a formal whistle blowing policy
which has been communicated to all employees and
which provides information on the precess to follow in
the event any employee feels it appropriate to make 8
disclosure. The Group carries out a programme of
management self-assessments over the status of key
business risks through formal reviews which consider
the risks faced by the business, how these might be
mitigated and who within the Company is responsible
for implementing agreed actions. Where appropriate,
external advisers are appointed in orcer to support
this process.

Monitoring and managing the status of residual risk
The actions arising from these assessments

are consolidated and during 2004 the results were

reported to the Audit Committee far each committee

meeting. The Committee assesses the findings and

proposed actions for addressing residual risks and also

advises on areas for further attention.

Intemal financial controls

The Company has a comprehensive system
for regular monitoring and reporting of financial
performance and assessing the adequacy of the
Group’s systems of internai controis. A detailed
budget is prepared by management and thereafter is
reviewed and formally adopted by the Board. The
budget and other targets are regularly updated viaa
roliing forecasting process and regular business review
meetings are also held involving senior management
worldwide, at which the Company's overall performance
is assessed. The results of these reviews are in turn
reported to and discussed by the Audit Committee
and the Board at each meeting.

These processes are supported by discreet
reviews conducted by external advisers, as determined
by the Committee, in addition to the routine audits.
During 2004, this included a review of the Company's
treasury and foreign exchange policies conducted by
PriceWaterhouseCoopers LLP, the results of which
were considered and approved by the Committee
and the Board.
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whether there was a requirement for an internal audit
function. Based on the size of the Company and
present practices concerning the management of key
aspects of the business, the Committee is satisfied
that an internal audit function is not presently
required. This matter will be kept under regular review.

The Board confirms that it has reviewed the
effectiveness of the system on internal controls for
the year ended 31 December 2004.

Attendance at meetings

The table below shows the attendance of
each of the directors at meetings of the Board and its
committees held during the year. Acomprehensive file
of briefing papers and a meeting agenda is provided
for each director in advance of each meeting.
Decisions are taken by the Board, in conjunction,
where appropriate, with the recommendations of its
committees and advice from external consuitants and
executive management. In addition, during thase
months when a Board meeting is not schedufed, a
pack of management reports, including financial
analysisis sent to each of the directors.

Board Audit Remuneration Nomination
Number of meetings 10 4 3 5
J S Hodgson 10 - -
JDYCollier 10 - -
G Collinscn 9 - -
PGGGoodridge 10 - -
JW Whybrow 10* 3 3 5
D Tucker! 8 3 3 5
M L Shone g 4* 3 4
R Mackintash? 6 2 2 4
J Scarisbrick? 5 - 2 3
DrJ P Auton* 1 1 - -
A Arts® 1 - -
L Garrett’ 1 - - -
Dr H Hauser® 1 1 - -
DrPLO'Donovan’ 1 - - -
S Paterson’ 1 - - —
* Chairman from 2 March 2004

¥ Chairman from 23 January 2004
 Chairman until 2 March 2004
* Chairman until 23 Janyary 2004

L Appointed to the Board 23 January 2004

2 Apnointed tothe Board 5 May 2004

3 Appointed to the Board 16 June 2004

¢ Stepped down from the Board 28 January 2004. Mr Auton had attended the
Board meeting helg prior tothat date

5 Stepped dawn from the Board and Audil Committee on 30 January 2004.
Mr Arts had attended the Board and Audit Committee meetings held
priortothat date

6 Stepped down from the Board and Audit Committee on 21 January 2004,
Dr Hauser had attended the Board and Audit committee meetings helg
prior tothat date

7 Stepped down from the Board on 30 January 2004, They had attended the
one Board meeting held prior to that date

Alllidal GEliCial VieCung rcovidtions

The resolutions to be propesed at the Annual
Generaf Meeting to be held on 4 May 2005, together
with explanatory notes, appear in the separate Notice
of the Annual General Meeting, which has been sent
to all registered shareholders.




Board of Directors

John Whybrow §18
Chairman
Joha Whybrow has served 2s a
non-executive director of the
Company since December 2003
and was appointed Chairman in
March 2004, Having spentthe
majovity of his career with
Philips Electronics, he was
appointed presidént &CEQ
of Prilips Lighting Heldings BY,
based in Holiand, in 1895,
becoming executive vice
president of Royal Philips
Electronics BV and member of
the Board of Management in
1998. He returned tethe UK in
2002, becoming chairman of
Wolseley plc having beena
non-gxecutivedirector of the
company since 1997. Heis
aisoa non-executive director of
Dixons ple. Mr Whybrowis a
graduate of the Imperial College,
Londonwherehe completed a
degree in Mechanical
Engineering. He also has an
MBA from Manchester Business
School, Age 57.

John Hodgson
Chief Executive Offices
John Hodgson has served as
the Company's Chief Executive
Officersince February 2000,
From April 1997 to July 1998,
Mr Hodgsan served as senior
vice president af world wide
sales and technology centres at
VLS| Technology. From January
199010 Apri{ 1997, Mr Hedgson
served gs vice president for world
wide sales and marketing and
corporate officer at Lucent
Microelectronics. Priorto 1990,
Mr Hodgsan was a co-founder,
director and executive vice
president at VTC (nc., astartup
semiconductor company, and
prior ip that held a number of
exgcutive, sales ang technical
positions at various semi-
¢onductor companies, including
Fairchild Semiconductor and
Texas Instruments, Mr Hodgson
holds a 8.8c. from Leeds
University. Age 61.

James Cotlier

Chief Technical Officer,
Co-founder

James Collier has served asthe
Company'sChief Technical Officer
since CSR's establishment in
April 1999, MrCallierisaca-
founder of CSR. Between 1984
and April 1999, Mr Collier held
anumber of executive and
technical positionsat Cambridge
Consultants Ltd, where he
formed the microelectronics
group in 1987, Priorto 1984,
WirCollier held a number ot
executive end technical
positions at Schiumberger.

Mr Collier has a degree in physics
from Oxford University, Age 46.

§ Remuneration Committee # Audit Committee 8 Nomination Committee

Paul Goodridge,

Finance Director

Paul Goodridge has served as
Finance Director for CSR since
January 2002, having joined
the Campany in 2000. Prior to
joining CSR, Mr Goodridge was
head of UK finance for PA
Consulting, From 1980101997
MrGoodridge had a variety of
senior financia positions at Black
& Decker and Charringtons Fuels
Limited. Mr Goodridge isa
member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales, Age 39.
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Glenn Collinsen

Sales Director, Co-founder
Glenn Collinsen has served as
CSR’s Sales Director since
August 2002. MrCotlinsen is
aco-founder of CSR. Between
Cctober 1996 and 1399,
MrCoflinson served asa
senior engineer and then

as a marketing manager at
Cambridge Consultants Ltd,
Priortothat, heservedasa
design engineer and marketing
manager at Texas Instruments
Limited. Mr Collinson holds a
B.5¢. in physics and an M.Sc.
in electronics from Durham
University, and an MBA fram
Cranfield University. Ms Collinson
is a member of the [nstitute of
Electrical Engineers. Age4l.

Ron Mackintosh §t8
Non-executive Director

Ron Mackintosh was appointed
anon-executive director of CSR
in May 2004. He is a former
director of Gemplus SA, the
world's largest smartcard
manufacturer and waschief
executive of Computer Sciences
Corporation's (CSC) European
business from 1992-2000.

Mr Mackintosh is'a director of
software company Royalblue
PLC, chairman of software
company Smartstream Ltd

and chairman of Differentis, a
privatety owned European |T
services consultancy which he
co-founded in July 20Q0. Age 66.

David Tucker §18

Non-exacutive Director

Senlor Independent Director
David Tucker joined CSR as a
non-executive dirgctor in
January 2004, After nineteen
years as an investment manager
with M&G unit trusts, Mr Tucker
retired as deputy managing
directorin 1988, Heis currently
chairman of Edinburgh UK
Tracker Fund PLC and a nan-
executive director of Rexam PLC
where hechairs the audit
committee, He is also a trustee
of the Mineworkers' Pension
Scheme Limited. Mr Tucker is
amember of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales. Age 65.

John Scarisbrick §3
Non-executive Director

John Searisbrick joined CSR as
anon-executivedirectorin June
2004, Mr Scarisbrick worked for
25 years at Texas (nstruments
inavariety of roles, including
assenior vice president —
responsible for T)'s Application
Specific Products chip business,
president of Tl Eurppe and lead
the team that created T1's DSP
business in Houston, Texas.
Priorto T1, Mr Scarisbrick
worked in electronics systems
design roles at Rank Radio
International and Marconi Space
and Defence Systems in the UK.
Heis anon-executive director of
ARM Heldings plc and sits on the
board of three companiesin the
technology/telecoms sector -
SoniM, intrinsity and Ubinetics
-and ischairman of Cambridge
Positioning Systems, Age 52,

Michael Shone §10
Non-executive Director
Michael Shone served asthe
Chairman of the Company until
March 2004, Mr Shone has
served as chairman of 0ST
8usiness Rules Limited and Iris
Software Limited until their
salesin 2002 and 2004
respectively, He is currently
chairman of Flexible
Management Systems Limited,
Alaric Systems Limited and
Forty Two Objects Limited,
Fram 1990t0 1998, MrShane
was chairman and chief
executive officer of Anite
Systems Limited. He holds a
B8.Sc. degree in Mathematics
and is also a Chartered Engineer,
Mr Shenewill stand down as @
director of the Company on

31 March 2005. Age 64.
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Introduction

The directors present their report on the affairs
of the Group, together with the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2004.

Activities and business review

CSR isaleading developer and provider of single
chipwireless solutichs designed to support data and
voice communications between awide range of
products over short range radio links. More detailed
information on the principal activities of CSR plc and
its subsidiaries, together with a review of the
businesses, are set out on pages 6 to 11, Details of
the subsidiaries and branches of the Company are
set out on page 50.

Atthe Annual Genera! Meeting held on
18 February 2004, the shareholders approved a
restructuring of the Company’s share capital. Details
of the changes are set forth on pages 53 and 54.

On 19 February 2004, the Company changed its
name from Cambridge Silicon Radio Holdings Limited
to CSR pic. On 2 March 2004, the Company was listed
on the London Stock Exchange.

Financial results

The Group's consolidated profit and joss
account, set out on page 38 shows an increase to
$58.7 million in operating profit compared toan
operating loss in 2003 of $2.4 million. Turnover
increased by 274% to $253.1 million from
$67.6 million and basic earnings per share were
$0.53 from $0.03 in 2003. Adetailed analysis of
the Group's performance issetouton pages 1410 19.
In accordance with stated policy, no dividend will be
paid in respect of the year ended 31 December 2004.

Post balance sheet event

On 15 March 2005, through an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary, the Company acquired the entire
issued share capital of Clarity Technologies, Inc.
(“Clarity") for a consideration of $17.1 mitlion,
payable in cash. The Company will fund the
acquisition from its existing cash resources. Clarity is
in the early stages of revenue generation and made an
unaudited operating loss of $4.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2004.

Future development

[t remainsthe Board's intention to develop the
Group through organic growth and selective
acquisition.

Directors

Details of the directors of the Board who served
during the year are contained on pages 20 and 21.
Biographies of the directors in office at 31 December
2004 are on pages 24 and 25.

The interests of the executive directorsin the
shares and options of the Company are detailed in note
7 tothe accounts and in the Report of the
Remuneration Committee on pages 47 and 34
respectively.

In accordance with the articies of association,
the directors retiring at the Annual General Meeting
will be Mr Ron Mackintosh and Mr John Scarisbrick,
asthey have been appointed since the last meeting.
Beingeligible, Mr Mackintosh and Mr Scarisbrick
offer themselves for election. Mr James Collier and
Mr Glenn Collinson are retiring by rotation and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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Employees

The Company is conscious that its employees
are key contributors to its success. The Company
therefore encourages good employee relations across
all of its operations and requires that this is facilitated
by regular meetings and scheduled briefings attended
and supported by senior management.

Company wide briefings are held with al! staff
every month. In addition, scheduled meetings are held
atteam and department levels to consider commercial,
strategic, financial and human resource issues. Key
findings from these meetings are discussed ata
weekly meeting of senior management for the Group’s
operations worldwide. These have been an important
element in supporting the Company during its
rapid growth.

The Company also recognises its responsibilities
to ensure the fair treatment of all of its employees in
accordance with national legis!ation applicable to the
territorigs within which it operates. Equal opportunities
for appropriate training, career development and
promotion are available to all employees regardless
of any physical disability or their gender, religion,
race or nationality. in particular, having regard to their
aptitudes and abilities, the Company gives full and
fair consideration to applications for employment
received from disabled persons.

Pension arrangements in each of the countries
in which the Group operates are maintained in
accordance with legislative requirements, custom and
practice’and Company policy as apprapriate.

Payment of creditors

Inthe UK, the Company agrees payment terms
with its suppliers when it enters into binding purchase
contracts. At 31 December 2004 the number of
creditor days cutstanding for the Company was 58
(2003 - 46) and for the Groupwas 58 (2003 - 56).

Research and development

The Group devotes substantial efforts to
research and development, which underpin and
sustain its success. The Company is conscious of the
need to ensure that adequate financial and human
resources are available forresearch and development
and these issues and future planning are considered at
operational level and at each Board meeting. All costs
incurred to date have been expensed.

Social respansibility
The Company recognises the importance of
social, environmental and ethical (SEE) matters and
during 2004 hasworked and in 2005 will continue to
work towards compliance with the AB1 disclosure
guidelines on social responsibility. This includes the
Company's impact through its aperations on the
environment, onthe safety and well being of its
employees, and end users of its products as well as
those who contribute to the process of the
development and manufacture of our products
through our suppliers, distributors and customers.
The directors consider that the Company's
business practices already take due account of certain
of its responsibilities for SEE matters. The Company
has identified the resources which are key to its
business and established practices intended to
safeguard and maintain them. A significant resource
isthe Company's employees and the Company has
established policies and practices which encourage
the recruitment, retention and motivation of staff.
Key businessrisks pertaining to the Company,
and of which SEE matters form part, have been
identified. These risks are reviewed on aregular basis
and account is taken of the potential impact to the
businessand its stakeholders resulting from any such
risks. In response to an element of this evaluation, in
January 2005, the Company was recommended for
certification under OHSAS 18001, The Companyis
alsoregistered under the quality standard }SO 9000.
Totheextent they apply tothe Company’s
operations, the Company is considering issues
connected with the safe disposal and treatment of its
products at the end of their working life, in accordance
with the Waste from Electrical and Electronic
Equipment (WEEE) Directive, which is expected to
come into effect in 20085, It isrecognised that the
rapid growth and change in the Company’s activities
makes this achallenging task, however the Company
will be endeavouring to work towards compliance.
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The Company recognises the importance of
ensuring that its suppliers have appropriate policies
and practices on SEE matters. Asaresult, the
Company undertakes occasional audits of its principal
direct suppliers in refation primarily to environmental,
but also considering social and ethical issues. The
next audit is scheduled to be undertaken in April
2005,

The Company has put in place formal processes
forthe identification and, where possible, the
management of significant risks which are reviewed
each quarter by senior management. This is formally
reported on a regular basis to the Audit Committee, as
aresultof which the directors are aware of the potential
cost and resources involved in managing these risks.

The Company is also aware of the importance
of ensuring that its products can be used in asafe
manner, The Company considers that its products
actively facilitate the safe and convenient use of a
range of consumer products. The Company supports
our customers in the drive for ever smaller and cheaper
maobite communication devices, employing low power
radiowaves. Through application of the Company’s
technology, our customers can supply mobile phenes
which facilitates compliance with the growing amount
of legislation worldwide concerning the safe use of
phones whilst driving.

Directors’ responsibility statement

Company law in the United Kingdom requires
the directors to prepare financial statements for each
financial year which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and Group as at the end
of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the
Group for that period.

In preparing those financial statements, the
directors are required to select suitable accounting
policies and then apply them consistently, make
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent and state whether applicable accounting
standards have been followed.

The directors are also responsible for keeping
proper accounting records which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the Company and the Group and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 1985. They also have responsibility
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.

The directors, having prepared the financial
statements, have permitted the auditors to take
whatever steps and undertake whatever inspections
they considerto be appropriate for the purpose of
enabling them to give their audit opinion.
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After making due enquiries, the directors have a
reasonable expectation at the time of approving the
financial statements that the Group has adequate
financial resources to continue to operate for the
foreseeable future and, consequently, continue to use
the going concern basis for preparing the financial
statements which follow.

Substantial shareholdings

The following interests of 3% or more inthe
issued share capital of the Company appears in the
register maintained under the provisions of Section
211 of the Companies Act 1985.

Disclosed holding

ordinary share capital

% of issued

Fidelity, FMR Corp, Fidelity International Ltd
3iGroupplc
Deutsche Bank AG

Lansdowne PartnersLidclientfunds
Lega! & Genera| Group Pic

Goldman Sachs& Co
Amadeus

Auditors

Deloitte & Touche LLP have expressed their
willingness to continue in office as auditors and
therefore, in accordance with section 385 of the
Companies Act 1985, a resolution for their
reappointment will be propocsed at the forthcoming
Annual Genera! Meetiﬂg.

By order of the Bogfd

15,516,498
1,177,974
5,942,521

5,880,603

4,532,875

4,291,486

4,239,278

12.64%
5.85%
4.84%
4.79%

3.69%

3.50%
3.45%
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Introduction

This report has been prepared in accordance
with Schecule 7A tothe Companies Act 1985. The
report also meets the relevant requirements of the
Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority and
describes howthe Board has applied the Principles of
Good Governance relating to directors’ remuneration.
As required by the Companies Act, a resolution to
approve the report will be proposed at the An nual
General Meeting of the Company at which the
financial statements will be approved.

The Act requires the auditors to report
tothe Company's members on certain parts of the
Report of the Remuneration Committee and to state
whether in their opinion those parts of the report have
been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985. The report has therefore been
divided into separate sections for audited and
unaudited information.

Unaudited information
Remuneration Committee

The Company has a Remuneration Committee
which, with the exception of the role of the chairman
{see page 21}, is constituted in accordance with the
recommendations of the Combined Cede. Further
information on the Committee’s members and its
activities are setouton page 21.

None of the members of the Committee has any
personal financial interest (otherthan as shareholders),
conflicts of interests arising from cross-directorships
or day-to-day involvernent in running the business of
the Group. The Committee makes recommendations
to the Board concerning the remuneration of directors,
including the Chairman and other senior management
within the Group. No director plays a part in any
discussion about their own remuneration.

In determining the remuneration policies and
levels for the year,the Committee consulted Mr John
Hodgson (Chief Executive Officer) about its proposals.
Professional advice prior to the flotation was provided
by Deloitte & Touche LLP, who, foliowing flotation
were replaced by PriceWaterhouseCoopers LLPwha
were appointed by the Committee.

Remuneration policy for the executive directors

Executive remuneration packages are designed
in order o attract, motivate and retain employees of
the high calibre required by the Group inorderto
achieve its objectives, {o meet the needs of our
customers and enhance value to our shareholders.
There are five main elements of the remuneration
package for executive directors and senior
management, which include medium and long
term incentives comprising basic annual salary,
benefits-in-kind, a money purchase pension, a
cash bonus plan and participation in the Company’s
share incentive plans.

The Company's policy is that a substantia!
proportion of the remuneration of the executive
directors should be performance-related. The payment
of both cash bonuses and the vesting of share
incentives are subject to meeting performance
conditions established by the Committee at the
beginning of each financial year reflecting what, at
that time, the Committee considers to be demanding
targets. These targets are set taking appropriate
account of the challenging and rapidly evolving
market in which the Group operates, and the
expectations of the investment community on the
Company's potential future performance.

For 2005, the Company intends to intreduce a i
new share award plan enabling performance-related
share awards to be made toemplayees including
executive directors and senior management.

More details are contained Inthe Chairman’s letter
accompanying the Notice of Annual General Meeting
for 2005.

Basic salary

An executive director’s basic salary is reviewed
by the Committee prior to the beginning of each
year and when an individual changes position or
responsibility. When making a determination astothe
appropriate remuneration, the Committee considers
remuneration practices within the Group as awhole
and where considered relevant, consults objective
research on companies within the Group’s peers.
With the exception of Mr Hodgson, wha is paid in
US Dot lars, the executive directors are paid in
Pounds Sterling.

Benefits-in-kind

The executive directors receive certain benefits-
in-kind, comprising private medical insurance, life
assurance of four times basic salary, and personal
accident insurance and subsistence expenses.

Cash benus plan

The Committee is responsible for determining
onwhat basis to incentivise employess, including
executive directors, through a cash bonus plan. The
Committee establishes against defined targetsthe
minimum and subsequent thresholds at which a
bonus will be payable and the maximum potential
award. In setting appropriate bonus thresholds and
targets, the Committee may refer to the objective
research on a comparator group as noted above and
ensuresthat the targets set are suitably demanding.
The Committee seeks to apply performance conditions
which are aligned with the interests of shareholders.

For 2004, the targets were set after considering
the Company's budgeted operating profit and analyst
consensus projections ($15.3 miltion) at the time of
the Company’s flotation. This budget was agreed
based upon objectives which were considered to be
appropriate and stretching against the background of
an operating loss of $2.4 million in 2003.




Targetswere set that required operating profit to
reach $13 million for the minimum award of 10% of
basic salary rising to $20 million for the maximum
award of 50% of basic salary. For each of the directors
an award of 50% of basic salary was made in February
2005. The maximum bonus for 2005 is also 50% of
basic salary. Targets for the bonus plan for 2005 are
based on operating profits for the yearending
31 December 2005.

Share options

The Company has four share option plans,
intended to facilitate the motivation and retention of
employees. Two of the plans were established prior to
the Company's flotation, the Founders Share Option
Plan and the Global Share Option Plan. Whilst not al!
the awards underthese plans have fully vested, the
schemes are closed for the purpose of any new awards,
and neither scheme was used during 2004 for grants
toexecutive directors.

Following approval at the Annual General
Meeting, held on 18 February 2004, the Company
established & new share option scheme called the
CSR plc Share Option Scheme (CSOP). The reason
for the new scheme was to incentivise the executive
directors and employees whilst aligning their interests
more closely with those of the Company's sharehalders
folfowing the Company's fiotation.The Committee has
responsibility for supervising the CSOP and the grant
of options in accordance with its rules.

During 2004 the Company made two categories
of awards underthe CSOP. The first at the time of the
Company’s flotation in March 2004 was made to all
eligible employees, excluding executive directors.
Shares allocated under this grant will vest in February
2007.The award does not have any performance
conditicns.

A separate allocation to selected eligible
employees, including executive directors, was also
made in 2004 under the CSOP. Options granted may
be exercised between three and ten years after the
date of grant, subject to the Company satisfying
predetermined performance conditions. The
performance criterion requires the Company to satisfy
Earnings Per Share (EPS) targets atthe end of a three
year period. Nore-testing is permitted.

For performance-related allocations made
under the CSOP during the financial year to
31 December 2004, the Company is required to
meet certain EPS targets at 31 December 2006, Atan
EPS of $0.17 pershare, 10% of the allocation would
vest. Thereafter additional increments of 10% of the
allocation shall vest on a straight line basis uptoan
EPS of $0.26 pershare when the maximum of 100%
of the allocation would vest. At the time of the
Company's flotation in March 2004, achieving the
maximum award required a growth in EPS of 766%
over 2003 or $0.23 pershare, from $0.03 per share
in 2003.

The performance criterion, which applies to
all participants, including executive directors, was
chosen to ensure that the vesting of benefits was
aligned to improved financial performance of the
Company, from which shareholders would aiso
benefit. The maximum level of awards allocated to
executive directors was over shares up to a maximum
value equivalent to 120% of basic salary.

The rules of the CSOP do not allow for options to
be granted at adiscount tothe Company's share price
at the date of grant.

The Company's policy is to grant options to
executive directors at the discretion of the Committee
taking into account individual performance. For grants
made in 2005, it is expected that awards will be up to
amaximum of 50% of basic salary. Pursuant o the
rules of the CSCOP, the Commiittee also reserves to
its discretion the right to grant awards at a higher
proportion of basic salary and which, in exceptional
circumstances only, could be up to 400% of basic
salary. Stretching EPS targets will be imposed.

The Company alsooperates an Inland Revenue
approved SAYE Share Option Scheme for eligible
employees under which gptions may be granted at a
discount of up to 20% of market value. Executive
directors are eligible to participate in the SAYE Share
Option scheme.

Nosignificant amendmaents are proposed to be
made to the terms and conditions of any entitlement
of a director under these share gption plans. Forthe
yearto 31 December 2004, the Company did not
operate any long-term incentive plans other than
the share option schemes described above,

Performance Share Awards

Subject to the proposed new share award
plan being approved at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting, the Committee intends to make
awards to executive directors and senior management
of share awards subject to stretching targets based on
Total Shareholder Return, (“TSR"}as explained in
more detail in the Chairman's letter accompanying
the notice of the Annual General Meeting. 1n the event
that the TSR performance meets the conditions of
vesting, the Committee will, prior to vesting, consider
the underlying financial performance of the Company
and whether in light of this performance, vesting
should be permitted. The Committee will in ayearin
which an award vests, report to shareholders onthe
underlying financia!l performance which had been
considered when approving vesting. These awards are
intended to reward strong relative performance, whilst
share options will continue to reward absolute
performance. In keeping with the share option plan,
the Committee will reserve the right to grant awards at
a proportion of basic salary which, in exceptional
circumstances only, could be up to 200%. The total
levels of grant of options and performance share
awardswill not be excessive.

As described in the Chairman's letter
accompanying the Notice of the Annual General
Meeting, shareholder approval is to be sought at the
Annual General Meeting tointroduce a single 10%
in 10 years dilution limit on post-flotation grants
under all of the Company's share plans, including
the proposed new share award plan.

Pension arrangements

Three of the executive directors are members
of the Cambridge Silicon Radio Retirement Benefits
Scheme (‘the Pension Plan')which isan inland
Revenue approved money purchase (defined
contribution) scheme operated for eligible employees
inthe United Kingdom. Mr Hodgson is not a member
of the Pension Plan.
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the employee's gross basic salary. Details of the actual
contributions made by the Group to the Pension Pian
on behalf of the executive directors are set outin the
table on page 33. Normal retirement age is 65 for all
employees. No other element of the directors
remuneration is pensionable.

Under Inland Revenue rules, to the extent
that a director's benefits from a company scheme
are restricted by limits set by the Inland Revenue,
payments may be made to funded unapproved
retirement benefit schemes. There are no such
arrangements in place for the directors of
the Company.

Performance graph

The graph below shows the Company’s
performance, measured by total shareholder return,
compared with the performance of the FTSE Techmark
100 index. The FTSE Techmark 100 index has been
selected for this comparison because it is a broad
equity index of which CSR plc is a constituent
company. The graph covers the period since the
Company’s listing on the London Stock Exchange.

Directors’ contracts

it isthe Company's policy that executive
directors should have contracts of an indefinite term.
All the executive directors have contracts which are
subject tc one year's notice by the Company and six
months’ notice from the executive. Mr James Collier
and Mr Glenn Collinson who are propased for re-
election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
each have service contracts which provide for a notice
period by the Company of one year.

The details of the directors’ service contracts and
notice period under their respective contracts are
summarised in the table below:

Name of director Date of service contract Pericd of notice

JDYCollier  25February2004 1 year
G Collinson 25 February 2004 1 year
JSHodgson ~ 25February2004 ~ - lyear
P G G Goodridge 25 February 2004 1 year

Inthe event of terminaticn, adirector would
be entitied to a payment not exceeding one year’s
basic salary. [n an appropriate case, the Company
would have regard to the departing diractor’s duty
to mitigate loss.

Total shareholder return
= CSR plc = FTSE Techmark 100 index
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All non-executive directors have specific
terms of engagement provided in formal letters of
appointment and their remuneration is determined
by the Board within the limits set by the Articles of
Association and based on independent surveys of fees
paid to non-executive directors of similar companies.
Withthe exception of Mr Shone, the non-executive
directors are appointed for a fixed three year term,
subject to re-appointment by the shareholders.

Mr Shone entered into a new letter of engagement

at the time of the Company’s flotation providing for
atwelve month appointment which terminates on

31 March 2005. This amended the terms of Mr
Shone's services for the Company including the basis
of remuneration to a fixed annual fee. The basic fee
paid to each non-executive director for the year to

31 December 2004 was £27,000. An additional fee
of £3,000 is paid for chairmanship of a committee.
With effect from 7 October 2004, Mr Tucker was
appointed as the Senior Independent Director, in
respect of which he received pro-rata payments on an
annualised fee of £3,000.

Non-executive directors do not receive any
bonus and since flotation have not participatedin
awards under the Company's share schemes and are
not eligible to join the Company's pension scheme.
Mr Ron Mackintosh and Mr John Scarisbrick who are
proposed for election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting, being non-executive directors, do
not have a service contract.

Name of director  Date of letter of appointment Duration of appointment

JW Whybrow 17 December 2003 3 years'
D Tucker 23 January 2004 3 years
MLShone 31 March2004 1 year
R Mackintosh 16 March 2004 3 years
J Scarisbrick 16 June 2004 3 years

t Mr Whybrow's term of appeintment commenced on 2 March 2004, being
the date of the Cempany's agmission to the London Stock Exchange,

Issue of shares to Non-executive directors
Conditional on admission to the London
Stock Exchange, at the time of their appointments,

MrWhybrow and Mr Tucker were offered the
opportunity to purchase shares in the Company.
Mr Whybrow was allotted 100,000 shares and

Mr Tucker was allotted 60,000 shares based on the
then most recent funding round price of $1.67 per
share. At that time, the fair value of the Company’s
ordinary shares was deemed to be £2 pershare. In
accerdance with applicable accounting standards,
a charge on the notional gain by each director of
$210,603 and $128,402 respectively was
recognised in the profit and foss account.

Outside appointments

Executive directors are entitled to accept
appointments cutside the Company provided that
the Chairman’s permission is sought prior to accepting
the appsintment and that fees are accounted for tothe
Company. No executive director currently has an
appointment outside the Company.
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Audited information
Directors' emoluments or fees

The emoluments or fees of directors serving during the year, for the financial years 2003 and 2004 were as follows:

Fees/Basic salary Benefitsinkind Annualbonuses  QOther bonuses 2004 total 2003 total
Name of director $ $ $ $
Executive ) .
JDYColler 231,855 630 136770 - 369,250 208,353
G Collinson 202,992 549 123093 - 326634 180,869
J§ Hodgson |, 360,567 16, 059 187,500 - 564,126 288,400
PGGGoodridge 185916 630 113975 38797 339318 = 5435
Dr P L O'Donovant 13,320 53 - - 13,373 158,280

Non-executive

JWWhybrow 139,671 - - - 139671 11,525
[ £l s 47 333. . - it o N 47, 333 R
Ml . ..63,013 - - ~ 63013 126,777
R Mackintosh .. ..33248 - .. 33248 -
JScarisbrick 22,697 ~ - - 226897 -
OrJ P Auten'y - - - - - 41,491
AARs (Gilde T Fund BVt 2586 - - - 2,586 15,367
L Garrett (30}t 2424 - - - 2424 -
DrH Hauser' (Amadeus | LP)* 2586 - - - 2,586 15,367
S Paterson
(Scottish Equity Partners 1)t 2,586 - - 2,586 15,367
Total 1,310,798 17,921 561,338 38, 797 1,928,854 1,087,231

Fees to third parties

10,182 46,101

The salary for Mr Hodgson was paid in US Dollars. The salary and fees for other directors were paid in Pounds Sterling, butdencminated in US Dollars for
reporting purposes, consistent with the accounting policiesof the Company. “Total fees of $10,182{2003 - $46,101) were paid to third parties in respect of
the services of A Arts, H Hauser, L Garrett and S Paterson as indicated in the table above. §MrGoodridge was paid a discretionary bonus in connection with
the Company’s successful listing on the London Stock Exchange. tResigned 28 January 2004. tResigned 30 January 2004. "Resigned 21 January 2004,

Aggregate directors’ remuneration

The aggregate directors' remuneration were as follows:

2004 2003
3 $

Emoluments
Gains on exercise of share optlons

Notional gains from the issue of shares at less than fair value’

1,028,854 1,087,231

1,686,400 3,945,155
339,005 -

Money purchase pension contributions

87,106 69,454

Total

4,041,364 5,101,840

1 See further explanation on page 32

Directors’ pension entitiements

Contributions paid by the Group in respect of the directors during the year were as follows:

200: 2002
JOYCollier e 31,634 26591
GColiinson 27,798 19,943
P G G Goodridge 25,808 ) 761
DrP L O’'Donovan 1,865 22,159
Total 87,106 69,454
tResigned 30 January 2004,

w2~ IR
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Report of the
Remuneration Committee
continued

Directors’ share options
ardinary shares in the Company granted to or held by the directors.

Details of the options exercised during the year were as follows:

Aggregate emoluments disclosed on page 33 do not include any amounts for the value of options to acquire

Gaingon Gainson
Market price at exergise exercise
Numberof  Exerciseprice  exercisedate 2004 2003
Name of director Scheme options $ $
Executive o o v
JDYCoiher o == — _ - 584,347
GColiinson T = - - 1,441,149
18 Hodgson Global 167,104 0.29 374 575655 1,180,620
JS Hodgson _ _ Global 167,104 023 674 1077716 -
PG G Goodridge ~ Globa! 5686 093 674 33,029 -
Dr P L O'Donovant - - - - 739,039
Total 1,686,400 3,945,155
1 Resigned 30 January 2004
Details of options for directors who served during the year are as follows:
1Jan 2004
(or date of 31 Dec 2004  Exercise
appointment) (ordateof Pricef Date from which
Narne of Directar Scheme Nate (v) Granted Exercised resignation) Note{v} exercisable  Vesting Expiry date
J DY Collier Founders 147,000 - - 147,000 0.0033 1Apr2000 Note (i) 1 Apr 2009
o Founders 735,000 - - 735000 0.0537 1Apr2000 Note()  1Sep2010
_ Global 120,000 @ - - 120 000 0.5033” 10May 2001 Note 10 May 2010
€S0P - 75000 - 75,000 20000 26Feb2007 Note(vi) 26 Feb2014
SAYE - 5,013 - 5013 1.8800 '1May2007 Note{vii)) 1 Nov 2007
G Collinson _ Founders 147,000 - - 147,000 0.0033 1Apr2000 Note()  1Apr2009
T Founders 147,000 - - 147,000 0.0537 T1Apr2000 Note() ~ 1Sep2010
T _TGlbal 75000 __ - = 75000 05033 10May2001 Note)  10May2010
o CSoP T TTUIL148 - 11,148 2.3500 26Feb2007 Note(vi) 26 Feb2014
i _Csop - 55852 - 55852 2.0000 26Feb2007 Notelvi)  26Feb2014
SAYE - 5,013 ~ 5,013 1.8800 1May2007 Note (viii) 1 Nov 2007
J S Hodgsen Note (x) Global 2,400,000 - 334,208 2,065,792 0.1563 19Feb2001 Note(i) =~ 19Feb2010
T ksor - 120,000 ~ 120,000 2.0000 26 Feb 2007 Note (viii) 26 Feb 2014
P G G Goodridge _Giobal 53000 - 5686 47,314 0.5033  1Sep2001 Notes(i)(ix) 1Sep2010
7 Glebal 50,000 TS = 50,000 23850 31Dec200i Note)  310ec20i0
Global 2,400 - ~ 2,400 2.3850 310Dec2002 Note(i) 31 Dec 2011
. Globaf 37,500 - - 37,500 1 OIOO 310ec2002 Note(i)  25Nov2012
L Global 60,000 - - 60,000 1.0100 30Sep2003 Note(i)  30Sep2012
" Global 40,000 - - 40,000 10250 18Nov2004 Note(ii) 18 Nov2013
_UCsop T - 12,765 ~ 12,765 2.3500 26Feb2007 Note(vi) 26 Feb 2014
. Lsop - 54235 -  b4,235 20000 26Feb2007 Notel(vi) 26Feb2014
SAYE - 5,013 ~ 5013 '1.8800 1 May 2007 Note (vii) 1 Nov2007
Dr P L O'Donovan notevi Founders 147,000 - - 147,000 0.0033  1Apr2000 Note (i) 1 Apr2009
Founders__ 661,500 - ~ 661,500 0.0537 1 Apr2000 Note (i) 15ep 2010
Global 75,000 - - 75,000 0.5033 10 May 2001 Note () 10 May 2010
ML Shone 947,100 ~ 947,100 0.0537 18Sep2000 Note(iv) 1 Sep 2008
Total 5,844,500 344, 039 339,894 5,848,645

The market price of the ordinary shares at 31 Decermber 2004 was £3.90 and the range during the year was £2.00 10 £4.41. Noconsideration was paid for the award of an option,
(i) Vestingof option 20% on anniversary of grant, then 5% each subsequent calendar quarter end (31 March, 30 June, 30 Seotemiper, 31 Oecember) for 16 quarters,

(ii}:
(iii):
(iv):

Vesting of option 5% each calendar quarter end (31 March, 30 June, 30 September, 31 December) for 20 quarters.

a) There is a takeover or listing which places a value on the whole of the Company of at least $100 miltion before 8 April 2006; or
b) Before 8 April 2004, the turnover of the Group reaches at Jeast $75 miltion in any 12 month period and:
i) the profit after tax is at least 10% of turnover in that 12 month period; or
ii) the profit before tax is at least 20% of turnaver in that 12 month period.
Turnover and profit are determined by reference o the management accountis for the refevant 12 month period.
These criteria ware met in March 2004, following the listing of the Company on the London Stock Exchange.

(v} Option numbers and exercise prices are adjusted to refiect changes to the share capital structure as outlined in ncte 19 to the financial statements.

(vil:
(vii):

Resigned 30 January 2004.
Options granted to Directors under the CSOP scheme in 2004 vest after 3 years ang have certain performance criteria attached.

Vesting of option 25% on anniversary of grant, then 6.25% each subsequent calendar quarter end (31 March, 30 June, 30 September, 31 Cecember) for 12 quartess.

These share options were granted under a specific agreement with Mr Shone with vesting being subject to achieving the fotlowing performance criteria:

The options vest in propertiens from 10% - 100% dependent upon the EPS achievad by the Company. For the year ended 31 Decernber 2006 the target EPS is in the range

$0.17 to $0.26. Thereafter the option may be exercised for the rest of its ten year life without further test.

(viii): Options granted under the SAYE sCheme vest after 3 years and must be exeicised within 6 months of vesting date.

{ix):
{x): On 18 March 2005, Mr John Hodgson exercised 150,000 options under the Global Share Option Plan.

Approval

This report was approved by the Board of directars an 24 March 2005 and signed on its behalf by:
J W Whybrow

24 March 2005
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In accordance with the terms gt the time of grant, in the event the Company is acguired and Mr Goodridge's appointment is terminated, Mr Goodridge is entitled 10 early vesting of the optians.
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities

United Kingdom Company law requires the di rectors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period.

In preparing those financia! statements, the directors ara required to:

(a) select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
(b)Y make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
{c)state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed,

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Company and the Group and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985, They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

36 Changing the way the wosld connects
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Independentauditors’ report

Independent auditors’ report to the members of CSR plc

We have audited the financial statements of CSR pic for the year ended 31 December 2004 which comprise the profit and loss account, the
statement of total recognised gains and losses, the balance sheets, the cash flow statement and the related notes 1 to 28. These financial statements
have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein. We have also audited the information in the part of the Report of the Remuneration
Committee that is described as having been audited.

This report is made solely to the Company's members, as a bedy, in accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985, Qur audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matters we are required ta state to them in an auditors' report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Cormnpany'’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and'auditors

As described in the statement of directors’ responsibilities, the Company’s directors areresponsible for the preparation of the financial statements
in accordance with applicable United Kingdom law and accounting standards. They are also responsible for the preparation of the other information
contained in the annual report including the Report of the Remuneration Committee. Our responsibility is to 2udit the financial statements and the
part of the Report of the Remuneration Committee described as having been audited in accordance with relevant United Kingdom legal and
regulatory requirements and auditing standards.

We report tg you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view ang whether the financial statements ang the part of the
Report of the Remuneration Committee described as having been audited have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985,
We also report toyou if, in our opinion, the directors' report is not consistent with the financial statements, if the Company has not kept proper
accounting records, if we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding
directors’ remuneration and transactions with the Company and other members of the Group is not disclosed.

We review whether the corporate governance statement reflects the Company’s compliance with the nine provisions of the July 2003 FRC Combined
Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority, and we report if it does not. We are not required to consider
whether the Board's statements on jnternalicontrol cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s corporate
governance procedures or its risk and controt procedures.

Weread the directors’ report and the other information contained in the annual report for the above year as described in the contents section
including the unaudited part of the Report of the Remuneration Committee and consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any
apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with United Kingdom auditing standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements and the part of the Repart of the
Remuneration Committee described as having been audited. It also inciudes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the
directors in the preparation of the financial statements and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the circumstances of the Company
and the Group, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us with
sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements and the part of the Report of the Remuneration Committee described
as having been audited are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion, we also
evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements and the part of the Report of the Remuneration
Committee described as having been audited.
Opinion
{n our opinion:
 thefinancial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2004 and of the

profit of the Group for the year then ended; and

» the financial statements and part of the Report of the Remuneération Committee described as having been audited have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985,

D Q.Lc\m L& 77;\1,‘/;9(— LL F
Deloitte & Touche LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Cambridge

England

24 March 2005
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Consolidated profitand loss account

For the year ended 31 December 2004

2004 2003
Notes $'000 $'000
Turnover I B 2 253,146 67,622
Cost of sales {134,721) (36,515)
Grossprofit ) 118,425 31,107
Qther operating expenses (net) 3 {59,693) (33,514)
Operating profit (loss) .. ..58732 (2,407)
Finance income (net) 4 523 791
Profit (loss) on ordinary activities before taxation 5 59285 (1,616}
Tax on profit (loss) on ordinary activities 8 2496 4,540
Profit on ardinary activities after taxation, being retained profit for the financial year 20 61,751 2,924
Earnings per share $ $
Basic. - 10 0.53 0.03
Diluted . 0. 048 003
Theresuits were all derived from continuing operations.
Consolidated statement of total recognised gains and losses
For the year ended 31 December 2004
2004 2003
$'000 $'000

Profitforthe financialyear _. 61,751 2924
Loss on foreign currency transiation - (3)
Total recognised gains and losses relating to the year 61,751 2,921
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Consolidated balance sheet

31 December 2004
2004 2003
Notes $'000 $'000
Tangible assets 11 12,825 8,603
Currentassets B L
Stocks . L1300 30,088 6,880
Deptors ... . .la 43981 14,395
Short term investments 15 108,167 24,263
Cash at bank and in hand 1,807 1,686
‘ - 184,143 47,224
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year 16 (36,454) {19,678)
Net current assets 147,689 27,546
Total assets less current liabilities . 160,514 36,149
Creditors: Amounts falling due afte noneyear .. L7160 -
Provisions for liabilities and charges 18 (3,952) (756)
Net assets 155,402 35,393
Capitalandreserves o
Called-up share capital o ‘ 19 - 218 1,000
Share premium account o .20 77789 20,107
Capital redemption reserve e . . 20 950 -
Mergerreserve ... e 20 615674 61574
Profit and loss account 20 14,891 {47,613)
Shareholders’ funds 21 155,402 35,393
Analysis of shareholders’ funds
Equity interests 155,402 25,572
Non-equity interests - 9,821
155,402 35,393

These financial statements were approved by the Board of directors on 24 March 2005, and were signed on its behalf by:

Paul Goodridge Glenn Collinson
24 March 2005 24 March 2005
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Balance sheet

31 December 2004
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3 2004 2003

= Notes $°000 $'000

- Fixed assets . e

a Investments ‘ 12 991 991

|

ke |

- Currentassets )

j Debtors e 124 9,634

: Shortterm investments 5 78,306 10,314

ﬂ Cash at bank and in hand - 726

1 - . o h 7983 20674

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year 16 (683) {70)
Netcurrent assets 78,947 20,604
Total assets less current liabilities, being net assets 79,938 21,595
Capitaland reserves B e e
Called-upsharecapital e e e ... 18 218 1,000
Share premiumaccount B e .. 20 77,769 20.107
Capital redemption reserve . ‘ 20 950 -
Profit and toss account 20 1,001 488
Shareholders’ funds 79,938 21,685
Analysis of shareholders’ funds L
Equity interests ~ : ~ 79,938 20,645
Non-equity interests - 930

79,938 21,595

These financial statements were approved by the Board of directors on 24 March 2005, and were signed on its behalf by:
-

///. I 7 L N
A ( Q )f R Z"{C/[41 Vi<
PaulGoodricge Glenn Collinson
24 March 2005 24 March 2005
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Consolidated cash flow statement

For the year ended 31 December 2004

2004 2003

Notes $'000 $'000

Net cash inflow fromoperating activities I .23 35847 1,667
Returns on investments and servicing of finance 24 ~ 905 (52
Taxation o e e (1,939) 1154
Capital expenditure and financial investment 24 (7,624) (3,631
Cash inflow (outflow) before management of liquid resources and financing 27,189 {862)
Management of liquid resources 24 (83,904 186
Financing 24 57,588 {1,113)
Increase (decrease) in cash in the year 25 873 (1,809)
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Notes tothe consolidated financial statements

31 December 2004

1 Accountingpolicies
Asummary of the principal accounting policies, all of which have been applied consistently throughout the periods are set out befow.

a) Basis of accounting
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with applicable United Kingdom
accounting standards.

b Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements consolidate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings drawn up to the dates
indicated in the primary financial statements. The results of subsidiaries acquired or sold are consolidated for the periods from or tothe date on
which control passed.

The combination of Cambridge Silicon Radio Limited and CSR plc (formerly Cambridge Silicon Radic Holdings Limited) has been accounted for as

a merger in accordance with the group reconstruction provisions of Financial Reporting Standard No. 6 “Acquisitions and Mergers”. Consequently,
although CSR plc was not incorporated until 26 March 2001, the Group financial statements are presented as if the companies had always been part
of the same Group.

Other acquisitions are accounteq for under the acquisition method.

¢} Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment. No depreciation is provided on assets in the course of
construction. On other fixed assets depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write off the cost, less estimated residual value, of each asset on
astraight-line basis over its expected useful lifeas follows:

Computer hardware and testequipment  2t0 5 years

Software licences 3toSyears
Officeequipment 3years

Furniture and fittings Syears

Leasehold improvements Minimum lease period

Residual value is calcuiated based on prices prevailing at the date of acquisition.

o) investments :
Fixed asset investments are shown at cost less provision for impairment. Short term investments represent amounts on deposit with banks.

e) Stocks
Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling price, less further costs expected to
be incurred to completion and disposal. Provision is made for obsolete, stow-moving or defective items where appropriate.

) Taxation
Current tax, inctuding UK corporation tax and foreign tax, is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that
have beenenacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences that have criginated but not reversed at the balance sheet date where transactions or
events that result in an obligation to pay mare tax in the future or aright to pay less tax in the future have occurred at the balance sheet date, Timing
differences are differences between the Group’s taxable profits and its results as stated in the financial statements that arise from the inclusion of
gains and losses in tax assessments in periods different from those in which they are recognised inthe financial statements.

Anet deferred tax asset is regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only to the extent that, on the basis of all available evidence, it can
be regarded as more [ikely than not that there will be suitabie taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences can
be deducted.

Deferred tax is not recognised when fixed asseéts are revalued unless by the balance sheet date there is a binding agreement to sell the revalued assets
and the gain or lass expected to arise on sale has been recognised in the financial statements. Neither is deferred tax recognised when fixed assets are
sold and it is more fikely than not that the taxable gain will be rolled over, being charged to tax only if and when the repfacement assets are sold.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of the retained earnings of overseas subsidiaries and associates only to the extent that, at the balance sheet
date, dividends have been accrued as receivable or a binding agreement ta distribute past earnings in future has been entered into by the subsidiary
orassociate.

Deferred tax is measured af the average tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods in which the timing differences are expected toreverse,
based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is measured on
a non-discounted basis.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
31 December 2004 ‘

1 Accounting policies (continued)

g) Turnover

Turnover represents amounts receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of trade discounts, VAT and other
sales related taxes. Turnover is recognised upon shipment of goods. Royalty income is recognised upon shipment of the royalty earning product by
the licensee. Turnover is shown net of estimated provision for credit notes and returns.

h) Pension costs ‘

The Group contributes to a contracted-in money purchase pension scheme (CIMP) where the amount charged to the profit and loss account in respect
of pension costs is the contributions payable in the period. Differences between contributions payable in the period and contributions actually paid
are shown as either accruals or prepayments inthe balance sheet,

i) Foreign currency

The functional currency of the Group is the US dollar. Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange at the date of the
transaction or, if hedged, at the contracted rate. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in fareign currencies at the balance sheet date are
reported at the rates of exchangg prevailing atthat date or, if appropriate, at the forward contract rate.

The results of overseas operations are transiated at the average rates of exchange during the period and their balance sheets at the rates ruling at the
balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising on translation of the opening net assets, and on foreign currency borrowings, to the extent that they
hedge the Group’s investment in such operations, are dealt with through the reserves. Ali other exchange differences are included in the profit and
loss account,

j) Leases
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term, even if the payments are not made on such a basis.

Assets held under finance leases and other similar contracts, which confer rights and obligations similar to those attached to owned assets, are
capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and their useful lives. The capital elements of future lease
obligations are recorded as liabilities, while the interest elements are charged to the profit and loss account over the peried of the leases to produce a
constant rate of charge on the balance of capital repayments outstanding.

k) Research and development
Researchiand development expenditure is written off asincurred.

1) Derivative financial instruments
The Group uses derivative financial instruments to reduce exposure to foreign exchange risk. The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial
instruments for speculative purposes.

For a forward foreign exchange ¢cantract to be treated as a hedge, the instrument must be related to actual foreign currency assets or lizbilitiesortoa
probable commitment. it must involve the same currency as the hedged item and must also reduce the risk of foreign currency exchange movements
on the Group's operations. Gains and losses arising on these contracts are deferred and recognised in the profit and loss account only when the
hedged transaction has itself been reflected in the Group’s financial statements.

m) Share related charges ‘

in accordance with UITF 17, the Group recoghises a charge on shares or share options issued at below fair value, equal to the differentia!l between the
fair value and the exercise price of the option or purchase price of shares. The Group has taken advantage of the exemption contained in UITF 17 and
no charge is recognised on share opticns issued under SAYE schemes.
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Notes tothe consolidated financial statements (continued)
31 December 2004

2 Segmental information
The Group has one class of business, being the design and marketing of single chip radio devices.

Geographical segments:

Europe Usa Asia Qther Total
$'000 $'000 $000 $000 $'000
Turnover by destination: o o i ) o —__
Salesto third partiesin 2004 40,204 23,897 183,980 5,065 253,146
Sales to third parties in 2003 1,396 8,210 56,590 1,426 67,622
United Kingdem USA Japan Korea Group
2004 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Turnover by origin 253,146 - - - 253,146
Profit (loss) on ordinary activities before taxation 58,940 (43) 267 91 59,255
Segment net assets 154,488 125 626 163 155,402
United Kingdom USA Japan Korea Group
2003 : $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Turnover by origin 67.622 - - - 67,622
{Loss) profit on ordinary activities before taxation (1,934) 57 225 36 (1,616)
Segment net assets 34,924 67 366 36 35,393
3 Other operating expenses (net)
2004 2003
$'000 $'000
Researchand development e N e 27,281 16,584
Sales and marketing costs » _ 20,710 12,932
Administrative expenses 11,702 3,998
59,693 33,514
Administrative expenses include $2,935,000 (2003 - $nil} in respect of exceptional anerous lease charges, see note 18,
4 Finance income (net)
2004 2003
$'000 $'000
Interest receivable and similar incorme e e h213 335
Exchange(loss)gain e R S (384) 843
Interest payable on finance leases ] B N {8) (282)
interest payable and other charges ' (298) (105)
523 791
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
31 December 2004

5 Profit (loss) on ordinary activities before taxation

Profit {loss) on ordinary activities before taxation is stated after charging:

2004 2003
$'000 $'000
Depreciationandamounts writtenofftangibleassets e ST
Zowned ‘ o 4311 2,800
~held under finance leases R T 158
Losson dlspos_ail_t?f_@angnb[eassets(|nclud|ngassoc1atedforelgnexchangeadjustments) i 186 .43
Operatlnglease FEnfB|S o . T T
- plantand machinery . ' . v 20
Auditors’ remuneration for audit services o o . ~
~Group . 158 45

-~ Company 10 5

The Group paid auditors' remuneration of $721,000 {2003 - $492,000) for non-audit services, of which $263,000 (2003 - $nl1) was charged to the share premium account as share issue costs
following the listing on the London Stock Exthange.

A more detailed analysis of auditors’ remuneration on a worldwide basis is provided below:

2004 2003
$000 $'000

Auditservices . —_—
~slatutory audit _ R e e 143 50
—audit-related regulatory reportlng ' 25 -
168 50
Further assurance services 423 381
Taxservices . e e e e e e
- taxcompliance o 4__ o 44 26
—tax advisory ’ 80 40
124 66
Otherservices e e e .
—otherserwcesthatgwe nsetoaself reviewthreat e o 10 4
—consuitancy 164 31
174 35

Significant non-audit services require pre-approval by the Audit Committee.

Fees for further assurance services principally comprise amounts payable to the auditors in their role as reporting accountants for the Group’s (PO
in March 2004.

Fees for consultancy services principally comprise amounts payable to the auditors for advice regarding the Group’s remuneration policies.
Following the Group's |PQ, the auditors nollonger provide these services.

Fees for other services that give rise to a seif-review threat comprise amounts payable to Deloitte & Touche in Taiwan for their role as the local branch
accountants. Following the 1PO in March, the Group took steps to replace Deloitte & Touche as local accountants in Taiwan and this relatianship
ended in July 2004,
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31 December 2004
6 Staff costs
The average monthly number of employees {including executive directors) was:
2004 2003
Number Number
Research and development R 141 101
Administration e 2T 19
Sales and marketing 80 66
248 186
$000 $'000
Their aggregate remuneration comprised: : e
Social security costs _ 1,948 1,329
Other pensioncosts T 1,555 1,298
23,457 16,787

The Group operatesan Inland Revenue approved SAYE employes share option scheme and has taken advantage of the exemation given in UITF Abstract 17 “Emplayee share schemes” from recognising
acharge in the profitand loss account for the discount on the options.
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7 Directors' information
Directors’ remuneration
Details of directors’ remuneration for the year are provided in the audited part of the Report of the Remuneration Committee on pages 33 and 34.

Directors’ interests
The directors who held office at 31 December 2004 had the following interests in the shares of the Company:

1 January 2004

or subsequent date

31 Becember 2004 of appointment

Name of director Description of shares Number Number

JDYCollier ~ Qrdinary Shares of £0.001 each o o 2,119,898 =

- _ BOrdinary Shares of £0.00067 each - T 1,215,900

Convertible Preference || Shares of £0.00067 each L - 710

o Convertible Preference |11 Shares of £0.00067 each - 300

GColtinson _Ordinary Shares of £0.001 each .. 2,696,840 -

- 8 Ordinary Shares of £0.00067 each T =7 1,509,900

Converttble Preference || Shares of £0.00067 each N - 707

JSHodgson  Ordinary Shares of £01001 each - o 942,082 .

B Ordmary Shares Of £0 00067 each T R ) . — N 450.000

Convertible Preference || Shares of £0.00067 each o . - 14,141

o Convertibie Preferencelll Shares of £0.00067 gach e 2,228

PGGGoodridge  Ordinary Shares of £0.001 each 2046 -

~ 77 "B Ordinary Shares of £0.00067 each o o e 4,000

_ ... Convertible Preference |ii Sharesof £0.00067 each e = 316

MLShone Ordinary Shares of £0.001 each L o 630 -

A Orginary Shares of £0.00067 each o - 171,405

Receemable Preference Shares of £0.01 each o - 585573

B Convertible Preference Il Sharesof £0.00067each N o - 26794

Convertivle Preference 1] Shares of £0.00067 each L - 4,508

JW Whybrow Ordinary Shares of £0.001 each o 100,000 ~

O Tucker ___OrdinarySharesof£0.00leach " 60,000 -
R Mackintosh Ordinary Shares of £0. 001 each 20,000

Noother directors held a beneficial interest in the share capital of the Company during the year.

Disposal of shares
On 18 March 2005, the directors named below sold ordinary shares in the Company at a price of £3.50 per share. Their respective holdings following
the saje of ordinary shares are as shown:

Number held at
Name of director Numberofsharessold 18 March 2005
J0YCollier R 300,000 = 1,819,898
G Collinson ‘ ) - - ) 650,000 2,046,840
JS Hodgsont 150,000 942,082

t The sale of shares by Mr Hodgson foltowed the exercise of 150,000 shares under the Global Share Opticn Planon 18 March 2005, Mr Hodgson's aggregate holding in the Company's erdinary shares
therefore remained unchanged.

Directors’ share options k
Details of directors' share options are provided in the Report of Remuneration Committee on page 34.
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31 December 2004
8 Taxation
2004 2003
$'000 $000
The tax charge (credit) comprises: o
Current tax _ _
-Research & development tax credit current year ] = f2,488)
-Research & development tax credit prior year e = 2184
ZForeign tax T 134 138
L o 134 (4,514)
Adjustmentsinrespectof prioryears ) S
~ UK corporation fax 5,258 -
Total current tax 5,392 (4.514)
|ncrease in estimate of recoverable deferred tax asset e (7,786)
Origination and reversal of timing differences B T ' {102) (26)
Total deferred tax (7,888) (26)
Total tax on profit (loss) on ordinary activities (2,486) (4,540)
The standard rate of tax for the year based on the UK standard rate of corporation taxis 30% (2003 -30%).
The actual tax charge (credit) for the year differs framthe standard rate for the reasons set out in the following reconciliation:
Profit (loss) on ordinary activities before tax 59,255 (1,616)
Tax at 30% thereon o L ) ‘ 17,777 (485)
Factors affecting charge (credst)fortheyear N e
Capital allowances in deficit of depreciation and other timing differences 897 265
Higher tax rates on overseas earnings o o 59 43
Research and development expenditure surrendered fortaxcreait ———— © - 8721
Research and development tax credit )
Permanent differences e (3,440) (1,495)
Adjustments totax charge in respect of previous years e 5,258 -
Utilisation of tax Josses (15,159) (6,911)
Current tax charge {credit} for the year 5392 {4.514)
Oeferced tax asset
$000
At1January 2004 S e (141)
Credited to profltand loss account (7,888)
At 31 December 2004 (8,029)
Analysis of deferred tax balances: Unptovided Unproviged Provided Provided
2004 2003 2004 2003
$000 $000 $000 $'000
Timing difterences - - 2,089 ..6o8
Accelerated capital allowances e - - (1,393) (538)
Tax losses available — 9,710 7,323 71
~ 3,710 8,029 141

A deferred tax asset amounting to $8,029,000 was recognised in 2004 following a period of sustained profitability and the expectation of continuing
taxable profits.

The current tax adjustment in respect of prior yearsof $5,258,000 has resulted from the Group’s decision o elect for an alternative tax treatment
in respect of research and development expenditure for the years ended 31 December 2002 and 2003. This adjustment has increased the level of
trading tosses within the Group which are available for utilisation against future taxable profits. This benefit has been recognised as part of the
deferred tax asset.
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Notes tothe consolidated financial statements (continued)
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9 Profit attributable to CSR plc
The profit for the financial year dealt with in the financial statements of the parent company, CSR plc, was $85,331 (2003 -$436,103).
As permitted by s230 of the Companies Act 1985, no separate profit and loss account is presented in respect of the parent company.

10 Earnings per share
The calculations of earnings per share are based on the following profit and numbers of shares:
2004 2003
$000 $'000
Profit for the financial year 61,751 2,924

Number of shares  Number of shares

Weighted average number of shares:

For basicearnings pershare e 117,081,652 95,030,066
Assumed exercise of share options B 10,592,566 9,795,643
For diluted earnings per share 127,674,118 104,825,709
11 Tangible fixed assets
Computer
hargware, Assetsinthe
Leasehold  software and test Office Furniture course of
improvernents equipment equipment and fittings coasteuction Tota!
Group $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
COSt . PR —_ . e e e
Atllanuary2004 492 14780 &6 8% - 16,789
Additions _ 8867018 139 67 509 8719
Disposals T (356) {60 (72) (198) - {686)
At 31 December 2004 1,022 21,838 693 760 509 24,822
Depreciation o o
At1 January 2004 e 130 7085 483 508 - 8186
Chargefortheyear ~ 202 384l 139 129 - 4311
Disposals (269) (26) (72} (133) - (500)
At 31 December 2004 63 10,900 530 504 - 11,997
At 31 December 2004 959 10,938 163 256 509 12,825
At 31 December 2003 ; 362 7,695 163 383 - 8,603
Leased assets included above:
Net book value o e -
At 31 December 2004 - - - - - -
At 31 December 2003 - 417 - 76 - 493

Assets inthe course of construction comprise the Group's capital expenditure on theinstallation of a new ERP system.

Company
The Company holds no tangible fixed assets.

CSR ple Annual Report and Financial Statements 2004 49




Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
31 December 2004

12 Fixed assetiinvestments
Costand net book value

2004 2003
Company $'000 $'000
Subsidiary undertakings 991 991
Principal Groug investments
The Company has investments in the following subsidiary undertakings,
Countryof
incorporation  Principal activity Halding %
Subsidiary undertakings
Cambridge Silicon Radio Limited UK ‘Designand marketing of true Qrdinary, redeemable preference
‘ single chip radio devices and convertible preference shares 100
Subsidiary undertakings of Cambridge Silicon Radio Limited
Cambridge SiliconRadiofne. ~~ USA ~ Designand marketing of true single chipradio devices  Ordinary shares 100
CSRKK v . . depan  Marketingof truesinglechipradiodevices Ordinaryshares 100
CSR Korea Limited Korea Marketing of true single chip radio devices Ordinary shares o 100
CSR Sweden AB Sweden  Designoftruesinglechipradiodevicess Ordinary shares 100
Cambridge Silicon Radio (UK) Limited
{formerly CSR Limited) UK Dormant Crdinary shares 100
Cambridge Silicon Radio Limited has branches in Denmark and Taiwan.
13 Stocks
‘ 2004 2003
Group : $'000 $'000
Rawmaterials = = e e o .. i3328 1720
Work in progress o .. 5,004 2,245
Finished goods 11,266 2,915
30,088 6,880

Inthe opinion ofthe directorsthere is no material difference between the batance sheet value of stacks and their replacement cost.

Company
The Company held nostock at 31 December 2004 (2003 - $nil).
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31 December 2004
14 Debtors

2004 2003
Group $000 $000
Amountsfallingduewithinoneyear:
Trade debtors — 31783 8,597
Corporation tax 23 3,145
Other debtors B _ 43710 219
Prepayments and acerued income 1,868 1,828
Deferred tax (see note 8) 8,029 141
1 43,981 14,395

2004 2003
Company $'000 $'000
Amounts falling due within one year: B .
Amountsowed byGroupundertekings - _B.S75
VAT 368 167
Otherdebtors 159 -
Prepayments and accrued income 197 492

724 9,634
15 Short term investments

2004 2003
Group $'000 $'000
Deposits 108,167 24,263
‘ 2004 2003
Company $:000 $'000
Deposits 78,906 10,314
16 Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

2004 2003
Group $000 $'000
Obligations under finance leases =202
Tradecreditors _ - 21922 1112
Corporationtax 7 10
Qther taxation and social security - - 618 374
Othercreditors I .. 252 155
Accruals and deferred income ‘ 13,580 7,811

36,454 19,678

Other creditorsinclude a pension creditor of $221,056 (2003 - $131,132).
Borrowings are repayable as follows:
Finance leases
‘ 2004 2003

$000 $'000
[n one year or less - 202

Finance leases are secured on thase assets purchased with the finance lease.
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31 December 2004

16 Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year (continued)

f 2004 2003
Company $000 $'000
Tradecreditars e e e S e A2 70
Amaunts awed to Group undertakings . 662 -
Other taxation and social security 9 -

‘ 683 70
17 Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

j : 2004 2003
Group , $000 $000
Accruals 1,160 -
Ccmpaﬁy
The Company had no ¢creditors falling due after more than cne year at 31 December 2004 (2003 - $nif).

18 Provisions for liabilities and charges
QOnerous lease Returns and

' pravision  warranty provision Totat
Group $1000 $000 $'000
At1 January 2004 o L - 756 756
Charged to profitand loss account o e 2,935 1299 4,234
Utilised inyear (593) (445) (1,038)
At 31 December 2004 ‘ 2,342 1,610 3.952
Onerous lease provision

The Group has provided for the discounted antici pated costs of satisfying the terms of any onerous leases, less any anticipated income from sub-letting

the buildings. It is anticipated that the provision will be used over the remaining lease terms.

Returns and warranty provision

The Group provides for the anticipated costs assouated with returns under standard warranty terms. It is anticipated that the provision wili

be used over two years.

Company ‘
The Company had no provisions for liabilities and charges at 31 December 2004 (2003 - $nil).
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19 Called-up share capital
Company

Authorised share capital:
2004 2003
£000 £000
185,000,000(2003 - nil) Ordinary Shares of £0.001 each 185 -
7,500(2003-3,750) . Deferred Shares of £0.001 each (2003 -£0.00067 each) _ - =
Nil(2003-20,774,550) AOrdinary Shares of £0.00067 each - 14
Nil (200323, 592,120) __BQrdinary Shares of £0.00067 each . - 16
N:I (2003-59,200,000) Redeemable Preference Shares of £0.01 each - 592
Nil (2003 6,871, 920) o Convertible Preference | Shares of £0.00067 each - 5
Ni| (2003-10,357, 806) ~ Convertible Preference II Shares of £0.00067 each - 7
Nil (2003-7,440,510) Convertible Preference |1| Shares of £0.00067 each - 5
185 639
Allotted, called-up and fully paid:
‘ 2004 2003
; $'000 $000
122,101,811(2003 - nil) Ordinary Shares of £0.001 each - equity 218 -
7,500(2003-3, 750) ' __ Deferred Shares of £0.00067 each - non-equity - -
Nil (20031731 31’2 130) AOrdinary Shares of £0.00067 each —equity - 18
Nil (2003-13,914, 128) B Ordinary Shares of £0.00067 each —equity - 15
Nil(2003-59,142,858) __ Redeemabie Preference Shares of £0,01 each - non-equity_ - 950
Ni(2003-3,817,740) Convertible Preference | Shares of £0.00067 each ~equity - 4
Nil (2003-7,338,137) Convertible Preference |1 Shares of £0.00067 each—equity - 7
Nll {2003-6,028,157) Convertible Preference |1i Shares of £0.00067 each-equity - 6
218 1,000

annges to share capital;
Equity shares:

Duringthe period from 1 January 2004 t0 25 February 2004, the Company issued the following shares:

131,0438 Ordinary Shares from employee option exercises between 1 January 2004 and 25 February 2004. Consideration was $162,575,

atapremiumof $162,414.

20,000 B Ordinary Shares were issued to the non-executive director of CSR kk in Japan on 9 February 2004. Consideration was $66,600,

at a premium of $66,580.

80,000 B Ordinary Shares were issued to non-executive directors between 10 February 2004 and 12 February 2004. Consideration was $269,800,

at a premium of $269,700.

On 18 February 2004, by aspeciai resolution passed at the Annual General Meeting of the Company the authorised share capital of the Company, was
contirmed and ratified as £638,024.63 and was increased by £72,866.65 to £710,891.28 by the creation of a further 54,650,000 Ordinary Shares

of 0.1333333p each {the “New Ordinary Shares™).
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19 Called-up share capital (continued)

Equity shares (continued):

On admission to the Londen Stock Exchange on 2 March 2004

i) The3,817,140 Convertible Preference | Shares cf 0.0666667p converted into 3,817,140 Ordinary Shares of 0.0666667p

iiy The?7,338,137 Convertible Preference || Shares of 0.0666667p converted into 7,338,137 Ordinary Shares of 0.0666667p
jii) 1,729,109 Ordinary Shares of 0.0666667 p were issued as a result of anti-dilution rights associated with the Convertible Preference || Shares
iv) The 6,028,157 Convertible Preference 111 Shares of 0.0666667p converted into 6,028,157 Ordinary Shares of 0.0666667p

v) Thedirectors ailotted and issued by way of a bonus issue 50,370,444 New Ordinary Shares (such shares to be fully paid up by applying and
capitalising the share premium account of the Company to the extent required) to the holders of:

a) AOrdinary Shares of 0.0666667p
b) B Ordinary Shares of 0.0666667p
c) Deferred Shares of 0.0666667p

on'the basis of:

a) one New Ordinary Share for every A and B Ordinary Share of 0.0666667p held in the capital of the Company
b) one New Ordinary Share for every Deferred Share of 0.0666667p

vi) The A Orginary Shares and B Ordinary Shares of 0.0666667p were together designated as Ordinary Shares of 0.0666667p

vit) Everyone Ordinary Share of 0.0666667p in the issued share capital of the Company was consolidated with one issued New Ordinary Share of
0.13333333p inthe issued share capital of the Company into one Ordinary Share of 0.2p

viil) Every one Deferred Share of 0.0666667p in the issued share capital of the Company was consolidated with one issued New Qrdinary Share of
0.13333333p inthe issued share capital of the Company into one Deferred Share of 0.2p

fed

Each of the Ordinary Shares of 0.2p in the issued share capital of the Company was sub-divided into two Ordinary Shares of 0.1p in the issued
share capital of the Company

ix
X) Each of the Deferred Shares of 0.2p in the issued share capital of the Company was sub-divided into two Deferred Shares of 0.1p in the issued
share capital of the Company

The authorised share capital of the Company was increased by £65,545 from£710,891 t0 £776,4 36 and was re-designated so that it comprised:

3) 59,142,858 Redeemable Preference Shares of 1p
b) 7,500 Deferred Shares of 0.1p
¢) 185,000,000 Ordinary Sharesof 0.1p

xii) The Company issued 19,443,847 Ordinary Shares. Considerationwas $72,677,212 at 2 premium of $72,640,874. Issue costs of $5,530,581
were incurred.

Xi

1,924,576 Ordinary Shares were issued from employee option exercises between 2 March 2004 ang 31 December 2004. Consideration was
$1,391,400, at a premiumof $1,388,207,

Non-equity shares:

On 17 March 2004, the court sanctioned a reduction in the share capital of CSR plc to enable the Company to redeem the redeemable preference
shares. This resulted in the share premium account baing reduced byan amount of $11,192,335. This amount represented a realised
distributable profit.

On 22 March 2004, the Company redeemed all of its issued redeemable preference shares of 1p each in nominal value for a redemption price of 10p
pershare, being the original proceeds received upon issue. The aggregate redemption price paid to the holders of redeemabte preference shares was
$10,863,833. Inaddition, an aggregate amount of $324,824 was paid to holders of redeemable preference shares in satisfaction of the accrued but
unpaid dividends on these shares. ‘

Anamount of $3,678 remained of the $11,192,335 following the redemption, this was transferred to the profit and loss reserve as a realised profit.

In accordance with the Companies Act maintenance of capital regulations, an amount equal to the nominal value of the shares redeemed was
transférred to a capital redemption reserve, The nominal value redeemed was $949,618.
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19 Called-up share capital {continued)
The following options over Ordinary Shares of £0.001 have been granted and were outstanding at the end of the year:

Number of Exercise

‘ shares subject price per Vesting
Grant date to option share period
1 April 1999 o 1,040,496 £0.0033 Syears
1 September _199__9 25 Novempg[.}_ggf.? ' e 3,318 2 440l £0. 0537_ 5_y‘e‘ars
26 November1999 19 February 2000 ‘ 2,257, 242 £0.1563 4-5years
20 February 2000~ 23 October 2000 _ o 1,723,972 £0.5033 Syears
24 October2000 31 December2002 o _ ‘ 1, 233 140 £2 385 Syears
1January2002 31 December2002 o . o 928 973 _ £1.01 ~ 3-Syears
1 January 2003 - ,..17 November2__OQ§ o e o 164,28}___ o £101 Syears
18 November 2003 - 26 February 2004_ . 454,184 £1 025 o Syears
26Februay2004 17201877 £235 3yearst
26Februay2004 T 738300077 £2.35  3years
26 February2004 _ _ ) o o 727, 985_ o £2.00 3years?
26 February 2004 o . ‘ o 241,900 £2.00 3years
1 April 2004 72,000 £2.37 3years?
1 May 2004 o o S R T 501,977 £1.88 3years?
30June2004 ... %000 £802 3years
30September 2004 o 35000 £3625 3 years?
30 September 2004 ' 132,960 £2.894 3years’

13,767,865

! These options include 347,100 options issued to M Shone, with vesting conditions as specified in the Repert of the Remuneration Committee on pages 3Cto 34,
"These options have vesting conditions based on EPS growth over the vesting period.
*These options have been issued as part of the Company's SAYE scheme.

Exercise period:
Vested options are exercisable within ten years from the grant date.

CSR plc Annual Report and Financial Statements 2004 55




Notes tothe consolidated financial statements (continued)

31 December 2004

20 Reserves
Share Capital
Merger premium Other redemptian Profitand
resenve account reserve reserve loss account Total
Group $'000 $'000 $000 $000 $'000 $'000
AtlJanuary2004 . .. 81874 20107 325 .z. . \47613) 34,393
Share issues _ » - 74,513 - - - 74,513
Expenses of equity share issues e - (5,531) - - - (5,531
Bonusissue e e A28 - - LT 1128
Share related charge’ o T - s - 425 425
Courtsanctloned capitai reduction® - (11,192) 11,192 - -
Redemption p_f_r_egge_rga_b_le preferencesharesz e {11,192 950 3 o, 239)
Waiver of rightstodividends® T T (325) - . 325 .
Retained profit for the year - - - - 61,751 61 ,751
At 31 December 2004 61,574 77,769 - 350 14,891 155,184
Share Capital
premium Other redemption Profitand
! account resene reserve loss account Total
Company $000 $'000 $000 $°000 $'000
Atl Jahuary2004 20,107 - 488 20,595
Share issues e LJA513 - e - 714513
Expensesofeqmtyshare |ssues {6,831 - ~ oo 553D
Bonusissue (128) - - - (128)
Share refated charge' e e T T T, 425 425
Court sanctioned capital reduction” B _(..1}.:_12?),..,,.\, JAniee o - T
Redemption of redeemable preference shares? - (11,192) 950 3 (10,239}
Retained profit for the year - - - 85 85
At 31 December 2004 77,769 — 950 1,001 79,720

Theshare premium account and the capital redemption reserve are not distributable.

LUITF 17 ¢harge, incluging amounts relating to non-executive directors as disclesed in the Report of the Remuneration Committee.

*Seenote:19.

C8R plc waived their right to dividends on the Redsemable Preference Shares held in Cambridge Silicon Radio Limited.
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21 Reconciliation of movements in Group shareholders’ funds

2004 2003

; $000 $000
Profitfortheyear T N 61,751 2,924
Exchange loss - (3)
‘ , - 61,751 2,921
Newsharesissued ) ... 75,583 912
Issue costs ' o o (5,531) -
Sharerelatedcharge » - 425 -
Redemption of redeemable preference shares o . oy —
Reversal of accrued expenses ' - 18
Net addition to shareholders' funds ) ) 120,009 3,851
Opening sharehalders’ funds 35393 31,542
Closing shareholders’ funds 155,402 35,393

22 Derivatives and other financial instruments

This note deals with financial assets and liabilities, excluding investments in subsidiaries, As permitted by FRS 13 ‘Derivatives and other financial
instruments: Disclosures’, short term debtors and creditors have been excluded from the disclosures other than the currency disclasures.

Palicy

The Group's operations are financed through third party equity investments, cash at bank and in hand and short term deposits. The most significant
financial risks arise from foreign currency and interest rates. The Group uses forward foreign currency contracts to manage the currency risks arising
from the Group's operations.

Trie Boardreviews and agrees policies for managing these risks and the policies are summarised below:

Foreign currency risk
The Group's functional currency is US Dollars.

100% of the Group turnover is generated within the UK. Group policy is to denaminate sales to distributors and customers in US dollars.

Thé Group's overseas investments in Japan, Denmark, Taiwan, Korea and Sweden are small relative to the UK but nevertheless the Group’s balance
sheet can be affected by movements in these countries’ exchange rates.

Since a significant proportion of the Group’s operating expenditure is incurred in the UK, the Group is vulnerable to exchange rate fluctuations
between the pound and the dollar. To hedge this currency exposure the Group uses forward foreign exchange contracts. For 2005, the Group has
forward contracts forthe sale of $53.0 million (2004 ~$22.4 million) at an average exchange rate of $1.7832:£1 (2004 -$1.552.£1).

THe Group also operates in Denmark and is vulnerable to exchange rate fluctuations between the krone and the doilar. To hedge this currency
exposure the Group uses forward exchange contracts. For 2005, the Group has forward contracts forthe sale of $1.0 million (2004 —$1.6 millien)
at'an average exchange rate of $0.174:Kr1 (2004 - $0.153:Krl).

The Group also operates in Japan and is vulnerable to exchange rate fluctuations between the yen and the dollar. To hedge this currency exposure the
Group uses forward exchange contracts. For 2005, the Group has forward contracts for the sale of $3.7 million (2004 - $2.9 million) at an average
exchange rate of $0.0096:JPY1 {2004 - $0.00936:JPY1).

Aljl of these forward contracts have been accounted for as hedges in accordance with SSAP 20 - Foreign currency transiation.

Interest rate risk
The Group has no fong term bank borrowing or overdraft facilities. The Group currently has significant cash deposits and is subject to fluctuating
interest rates on these deposits. There are no liabilities subject to fluctuating interest rates.

Liquidity risk
The Group has no bank borrowings or overdraft facilities.

Interest rate profile
Trie Group has no financial assets, excluding short term debtors other than term deposits and cash held at bank and in hand. The Group has ne
financial liabilities, other than shortterm creditors.

|
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22 Derivatives and other financial instruments (continued)
At 31 December 2004 the Group held financial assets as follows:

GBP uss Yen Danish Kr Total

; $000 $000 $000 $'000 $000

Cashatbank (fioatingrates) =~ | L S Ao 139 ..._309 .206 1,907

Depasits (floating rates) 397 107,770 - - 108,167

At 31 December 2004 398 109,161 309 206 110,074
At 31 Dacember 2003 the Group held financial assets as follows:

GBP us$ Yen Danish Kr Total

$000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000

Cash at bank (floating rates) . . 366 1,218 16 86 1,686

Deposits (floating rates) 2,017 22,227 - 19 24,263

At 31 December 2003 2,383 23,445 16 105 25,949

The term deposits comprise geposits placed on the money market for periods of up to 4 months. The benchmark rate on the GBP deposits was UK LIBOR, the benchmark rate onthe US$ depesits was
US LIBOR. The weighted average interest rates rece ived on the GBP term deposits was 4.02% (2003 - 3.30%), the weighted average interest rates received on the US$ term deposits was 1.40%
(2003 - 1,09%).

The Group has financial liabilities of finance leases and redeemable preference shares. These are as follows:

‘ 2004 2003
$'000 $000

Finance leases o . o . - 202
Redeemable preference shares - 9,821
‘ ‘ - 10,023

The weighted average interest rates payable on finance leases in 2003 was 14.5%. The weighted average period on finance leasesin 2003 was 2.5 years.
During 2004, the Group repaid all amguntsdue under finance leasesand the redeemable preference shares were redeemed.

Currency exposures ‘

Gains and losses arising from the re-translation of the Group's overseas investments are recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account.
Exposures relating to transactions that give rise to the net currency gains and losses recognised in the profit and loss account are detailed in the
table below. Such exposures comprise the monetary assets and liabilities of the Group that are not denominated in the functional currency of the
operating unit.

Principal net foreign currency monetary assets/(liabilities)

2004 2003

$000 $000
British Pounds. _ v . ‘ 27y 3579
DanishKrone o 3 N 58 (238)
JapaneseYen . e ... 198 36
Euo | ) . | 4_ T2 0,230
Singapore Dollars o ) o - (12) (245)
Korean Won 22 33
Total ' (117) 1,935

The functional currency of all operations is the US doliar.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

31 December 2004

22 Derivatives and other financial instruments (continued)
Maturity of financial liabilities
The maturity profile of the Group's financial Ilabllmes was as foilows:

2004 2003
$'000 $'000
In one year or less - 10,023
Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
‘ Book valueat Fairvalueat
31 December 2004 31 December 2004
$000 $:000
Cashat bankandinhand _ . N o o nse7 1,807
Deposits 108,167 108,167
110,074 110,074
Derivatives used to hedge the currency exposure of the business:
Forward contracts - 3.574
Book value at Fairvalueat
31 December2003 31 December 2003
‘ $000 $:000
Cash at bank and in hand 1,686 1,686
Deposits el 24,263 24,263
Finance leases . _ . o o 202 (202
Redeemable preference shares {9, 821) "{10,580)
15,926 15,167
Derivatives used to hedge the currency expostire of the business:
Forward contracts - 3,219
!
Gains and losses on hedges
2004 2003
‘ $:000 $'000
Unreahsedgams onhedgesatl January 3219 905
Gains arising in previous years that were recognised in the year (3,219) (905)
Gains arising before 1 January that were not recognised in the ysar L - =
Gains arising in the year that were not recognised in the year 3,574 3,219
Unrecognised gains on hedges at 31 December 3,574 3,219

All gains are expected to be realised in the next year.
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Notestothe consolidated financial statements (continued)

31 December 2004

23 Reconciliation of operating profit (loss) to operating cash flows

2004 2003

$'000 $:000
Operatingprofitfioss) N . - 58,732 2,407
Depreciation charge o ‘1 311 579i5_§
Non-cash sharerelated charge " 428 ‘
Increase in stocks _ _ (23 208) (3, 714)
Increase in debtors (24,777) (6 588)
increase in creditors 16,982 11,081
Increase In provisions e 73,196 292
Loss on disposa! of fixed assets (including associated foreign exchange adjustments) 186 43
Forexgn exchange revaluation of fixed assets - 1
Net cash inflow from operating activities 35,847 1,667
24 Analysis of cash flows

2004 2003

$'000 £'000
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest received and simifar income ' 1,213 335
interestpaid - CGoo T a0y
Interest element of finance lease rentals (8} " {282)
Net cash inflow (outflow) 905 {52)
Taxation
Research & development tax credit received o o . 578 1,526
Repayment of 2002 research & development tax credit i (2,495) _—
Foreigntax paid (20) (372)
Net cash (outflow) infiow (1,939) 1,154
Capital expenditure and financial investment
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (7.624) (3,631}
Net cash outflow {7,624) (3,631)
Management of liquid resources
Cash (placed on) withdrawn from term deposits (83,904) 166
Net cash (outflow} inflow (83,904) 166
Financing
Issue of ordinary share capital . _ _ ) 74,510 912
Redemption of redeemable preference shares _ ‘_ (10,864) -
Issue costs ) (5,531 -
Payment of dividend arrears ) (329) -
Refund of costs originally charged to share premlum L ‘ - 18
Capital slement of finance lease renta payments (202} (2,043)
Netcashmflow(outﬂow) 57,588 {(1,113)
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| Notes tothe consolidated financial statements (continued)
31 December 2004

25 Analysis and reconciliation of net funds

Exchange
1 January 2004 Cash tlow movement 31 Decernber 2004
$'000 $'000 $000 $000
Cash at bank and in hand . § 1,686 873 (652) 1,907
Finance leases - - {202) 202 - -
Current asset investments 24,263 83,904 - 108,167
Net funds ‘ 25,747 84,979 (652) 110,074
2004 2003
. $'000 $'000
Increase {decrease) in cash inthe period ) o . 873 {1,809
Cash outflow (inflow) from increase (decrease) in liquidresources e o - 83804 (166)
Cash outflow from decrease in leasefinancing 202 2043
Change in net funds resulting from cash flows ) 84,979 68
Translation difference (652) 840
Movementinnetfundsinyear - — . . 84,327 08
Net funds at beginning of year 25,747 24,839
Net funds at end of year 110,074 25,747
26 Financial commitments
Annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
‘ 2004 2003
. Landand 2004 Land and 2003
\ buildings Other buildings Other
Group $'000 $'000 $:000 $'000
=within one year ‘ i i _ 155 19 19 -
—betweentwoand fiveyears . e o M43 4. 332 16
—after fiveyears 1,202 - 815 -
1,800 23 1,166 16

The Group had capital commitments of $3,230,012 at 31 December 2004 (2003 ~ $nil).

Company
The Company has no financial commitments at 31 December 2004 (2003 - $nil).

The Company had no capital commitments at 31 December 2004 (2003 - $nil).

i

27 Related party transactions
Transactions with directors are disclosed in the Report of the Remuneration Committee.

No other material related party transactions requiring disclosure by FRS 8 took place during the year ended 31 December 2004 (2003 - nil).

28 Post balance sheet event

On 15 March 2005, through an indirect wholly owned subsidiary, the Company acquired the entire issued share capital of Clarity Technologies, Inc.
(“Clarity"} for a considerationof $17.1 million, payable in cash, The Company will fund the acquisition from its existing cash resources. Clarity is in
the early stages of revenue generation and made an unaudited aperating loss of $4.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2004.
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Five year summary

31 December 2004

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
$'000 $000 $'000 $°00C $'000
Results
Turnover 4,511 16,979 27,682 67,622 253,146
Operating (loss) profit (20,726) (22,412) (15,343) (2,407) 58,732
{Loss) profit on ordinary activities before taxation (19,842) {21,497} (15,175) (1,616} 59,255
(Loss) profit for the financial year (19,974) (20,670) (14,052) 2,924 61,751
Assets employed
Fixeddssets e e .. b839 7686 6530 8603 12825
Netcurrentassets e .. 43999 21,808 25678 27,546 147,689
Creditars: Amounts falling Gue after more than one year (1,719) (2,846} . {202) - (116_9)
Provisions for liabilities and charges - (277) {464) {756) (3,952)
Net assets 46,819 26,371 31,542 35,393 155,402
3 $ $ $ $
Key statistics
Earnings pershare {0.30) (0.26) Q.17} 0.03 0.53
Diluted earnings per share {0.30) 0.26) (0.17) 0.03 0.48

1
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Share and corporate information

CSRple

Churchilt House
Cambridge Business Park
Cowley Road
Cambridge CB4 OWZ

Registered in England and Wales number 4187346
WWW.CST.COm

Advisors

Auditors ~ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Cor;jorate brokers  JPMorgan Cazenove lelted Credit Suisse First Boston (Europe) lented
Solicitors . SlaughterandMay

Bank Lloyds TSB Bank plc

Share information

S_ha}r_}gsoutstanding 122,724,838

Trading symbol CSR_
Countryofregister  Great Bntam(UK) o
Market ~ London Stack Exchange
SEDOL . __§i}5_738 e
Reglstrar Lloyds TSB Reglstrars

The Causeway, Worthing, West Sussex BN99 6DA

Shareholder information
Shareholders Shateholder
Number %
1-1, 000 ..378 37%
1,0 1-5,000 o ) ) 282 28%
§,001-10,000 i i 66 7%
10,001-50,000 133 13%
50 001 100,000 41” N 4%
100 001- 250,000 48 5%
Over 250,000 62 6%
Total 1,008 100%

Share capital structure

: Disclosed holding

ordinary share capital %of issued
Fidelity, FMR Corp, Fidelity International Ltd 15,515,498 - 12,64%
3i Group plc o . 7177974  585%
Deutsche Bank AG o 5, 942, 521 4 84%
Lansdowne Partners Ltd client funds 5,880,603 4.79%
LegaJ&Generaleup Pc 4,532,875  3.69%
GoldmanSachs&Co 4 291, 486 3 £0%
Amadeus o 14239278 3.45%
Other shareholders 75,144,603 61.24%
100.0%

Total |

Based on notifications to the Company in accordance with sections 198 to 208 of the Companies Act 1985.
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Glossary ofindustry terms

analogue: acontinuous representation of phenomenain terms
of points along ascale, each point merging imperceptidly into
the niext; analogue signals vary continuousty over a range of
values; reat world phencmena, such a5 sound, light and touch,
are analogue

application saftware: software that is written specificatiyto
address areal-worig problem or task

baseband processar that part of 8 chip which is designed to
implement in 2 digital format the algorithms, protacols ang legic
required to implement, for example, astandard suchasthe
Biuetooth wireless standard

bit: a unit of information; a computational quantity thatcan

take one of twovalues, such astrue and falseor Oand 1; alsothe
smallest unit of storage sufficient to hold one bit, kbt or Mt :
Bluetooth protocol stack: the communications software which !
isrequired together with the baseband processor and other
subsystems, toimplement the Bluetooth standard

Bluetooth qualified: certified by one of 2 pumber of
organisations approved by the SIG as meeting the Blustooth
specification and "Bluetooth qualified products' are end
products and modules whichare Bluetooth qualified

Bluetoth specification: the specification determined by the SIG
which defines the parameters which adevice providinga
Bluetooth system must meet; different versions of the Bluetooth'
specification are designated v1.0,v1.1 v1.2and v2.0

CAD: Computer Aided Design: ageneral term referring to
software applications and the methad of designing things using
acomputer ,
CMOS: Complementary Metal Oxide Semiconductor tachnalagy:
asemiconductor process technology that uses planar transistors
tomake chips that consume relatively low power and permit 3
high Jevel of integration '

CODEC: an acronym for coder/decoder: codecs are integrated
circuitsor chips thatinclude analogue-to-digital conversion and
digital-to-analogue conversion on asingle chip

¢chip: short for a microchip; semiconductor device or

integrated circult

coimmunications protocol stack: communications software,
which is required, together with the baseband processerand
other subsystems, to implement a wireless communications
standard

CSP: Chip-Scale Package: a semicanductor package which isas
small as the semiconductor ¢hip and is used for small firm facter
applications such as mobile phones, PDAs and wirgless devices
customer applications softeare: software that is not generic and
which is written to specifically address a customer-defined
prablem ortask

DSP: Digital Signat Processor; a device which enables computer
manipulation using processing elements or stored programs of .
anzlogue Signals which have been sampled and converted to
digital form

design win: CSR records a design win whea a product usingone
of its (Cs becomes Bluetooth qualifieg

die: another woed for chip; often used 1o refer tothe ‘chips’ whilst
theyarestill an integral part of the silican ‘wafer’ or where they
have been cut from the 'wafer’ but are, as yet, unpackaged
digital: the representation of data by aseries of bits er discrete
valuessuchasOsand 1s

dongle: an electronic device that is usually plugged into the USB
port of acomputer in arder to provide added functionality
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embedded selution: 2 system inwhich all processing is carried
outen-chipwithout the need for an external host progessar

end products: products proguced bya produtt manutacturer
whichara intheir final form and ready for the user, examples
include PCs and mobile phones

fab: short for silicon fabrication facility, manufacturing plant
orfoundry

fabless: short for fatricationless, 2 business mode| used in the
sermi K107 industey, wheee the manukactuee lor tebrication)
ofICs Is subcontracted toafoundry

fabless semiconductor company: companythat uses a third
party semiconductor fabrication service to manutacturesiticon
chips as opposed to fabrication facilities owned directly
firmware: software which interfaces with and typicaliy
contiguras and manages the hardwareina system

flash memory: electronic memary where the contents (usually an
applications program) may be programmed prior 1o use ang
which retains its cantents imespective of applied power
toundry: a semiconduttor manufacturer that makes integrated
circuits forthird parties

GHz: giga-Hertz

GSM/GPRS: GSM (Glebal Systern for Mobile Communicatians)
the most common digital rmobile standard: GPRS {General
Packet Radio Service} a digital mobile standard designed tosend
ang recelve voice and datasuch as email information from the
web and which is able to transmt data at higher rates than the
GSM stangard

host software: software runningon the system inwhich the
device isembedded

ICorintegrated circuit: a semiconductor device consisting of
many thausands or millions of interconnected transistors and
ather companents

|EEE: Instizute of Electrical and Electronic Engineers

1S0: International Standards Organisation: theinternational
arganisation responsible for developing and maintaining
worldwide standards for manufacturing, environmental
protection, computers, data communications, and many

other fields

150 9000: a series of international standards for quality
assurance in business practices, ratified by the iSO beginning in
1987. Cartification of 1ISO 9000 compliance is important tos
salling many types of goods and services including data-
communications equipment and services

Internet protocols: the communications protocols used over
the Internet

Kbs: 1kbsisaunitof 1024 'bits' per second

LEDs: Light Emitting Diode; a semiconductor device that emits
visible light when electrical poweris suppliedtoit

Mb o Mega Byte: 1024 times 1024 byteswhare | byteisequat
to8 ‘bits’

mermory: any device that can store data in machine-readable
format which may include RAM, ROM and Flash
microcontroller: often osfined as being a microprocessor
together with its memory and a means of allowing Input

and cutput

microprocessen: 2 computer with its entire CPU contained on
one integrated circuit

motherboard: the principal printed circuit board embedded
wilhin an electronic product

QOM: or Criginal Design Manufacturer: a manufacturer that
designs ang manufactures equipment for another company who
will, in turn sefl this to the end-user

OEM: or Original Equipment Manufacturer; a marufacturer that
sells equipment to retail and wholesate outlets

PC: personal computer

PCM: Puise Code Mod ulation: a coding technique where an
electrical signal is represented asdigital data

PDA: personal digital assistant: a pocket-sized personal
computer

package: the package of a semiconductor is the physical and
electrical interface between the chip and the system inwhich
itoperates

profile: a setof specifications defined by the SIG aimedat
facilitating communication between ¢lasses of Bluetooth-
enabled devices; examples include the headset and
tands-free profiles

protocol: & method by which two dissimilar systemscan
communicate

RAM: random access memory

RF:radlo frequency

ROM: reac only memory

radio modulation: dynaric modification of the characteristics of
a radic {electramagnetic) wave in order to conveyinformation
S1G: the Bluetooth Special Interest Group

sampiing: the process of shipping smati Quantities of a new

1G o acustomer inorder to allow the customer totest the IC
inits proguct

semiconductor: amaterial, typically crystalline, that can be
altered to allowelectrical current to flow or not flow in a pattern;
common semiconguctors are silicon, germanium and gailium-
arsenide and the tarm is also used to applyto ICs made from
these materiats

silicon: a semniconducting material used to make wafers, widely
used in the semiconductor industry as the basic material lor
integrated circuits

shortrange: Bluetooth is principal ly used for communicating
over ranges of up to 10 metres

software stack: software required toimplement the

Biuetooth standarg

transistor: the basic building block of modern semiconductor
microelectronics; a transistor regulates current flow or voltage
USB: Universal Sevial Bus: an interface between a computer
and add-on devices

UWB: Ultra WideBand, a wireless technology for ransmitting
large amounts of digital 6ata over a wide spectrum of frequency
bands with very low powes for a short distance

WiFi; WiFi short for ‘wireless fidelity' (also known as IEEE
802.11a//g) isan 11-55 Mbs rawradio bit rate data centric
witeless communication standard mainly used today forwireless
computer networks at home and in the office

wafer: adisc made of a semicongucting material such as silicon,
usually between 150mm (67 and 300mm(12')in diameter, in
which integrated ¢ircuits are manufactured; a wafer may contain
several thousand ingividual integrated circuits

yield: when used in connection with manufacturing, the ratio of
the number of usable products tothe total number of products
onawafer
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CSR's offices

United Kingdom
Churchitt House
Cambridge Business Park
Cowley Road

Cambridge CB4 OWZ

Tel: +44 1223692000
Fax: +44 1223692001
WWW.CST.COm

Denmark

CSR Denmark

Novi Science Park
Niels Jernes Vej 10
5220 Aalborg East
Denmark

Tel: +45 72 200 380
Fax: +45 96 354 599
WWW.CSI.COM

Japan

CSR kk

Kojimachi KS Square 9F
5-3-3 Kojimachi
Chiyoda-ku Tokyo
102-0083

Japan

Tel: +813 52762811
Fax: +81 35276 2915
WWW.CSI.com

Karea

CSR Korea Limited
2nd flgor

Hyo-Bong Building
1364-1

SeoCho-dong, Seocho-gu
Seoul

137-863

Korea

Tel: +82 234732372
Fax: +822 34732205
WWW.CST.COMm

Sweden

CSR Sweden AB
Emdalav. 16

22369 Lund
Sweden

Tel: +46 46 125300
Fax: +46 46 125300
WWW.CST.Com

Taiwan

CSR Taiwan

6th Floor

No.407 Ruey Kuang Road
Neihu Taipei 11492
Taiwan, R.0.C.

Tel: +886 27721 5588
Fax: +8862 7721 5589
WWW,CSF.Com

us

Cambridge Silicon Radio {nc.
2425 N. Central Expressway
Suite 1000

Richardson

TX 75080

Tel: +1 9722382300

Fax: +19722311440
WWW.CSr.Com

Clarity Technologies, Inc.
1740 Opdyke Court
Auburn Hills

Detroit

M148326

Tel: +1 248 408 1400
Fax: +1 248 409 1401
www.claritycve.com
WWW.CSr.COm




